
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Development Services Department 

303 First St. P.O. Box 1129 
New Bern, NC 28563 

(252) 639-7581 
 

 
Everything comes together here. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TO: New Bern Historic Preservation Commission 
FROM: Matt Schelly, AICP, City Planner  
DATE: April 6, 2023 
RE: Regular Meeting, 5:30 PM, Wednesday, April 19, 2023, in the Courtroom, 

Second Floor, City Hall, 303 Pollock St. 
INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES REQUIRING SPECIAL ASSISTANCE SHOULD CALL 

639-7501 NO LATER THAN 3 P.M. THE DATE OF THE MEETING 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA – 5:30 PM 
1. Opening of Meeting with Roll Call 
2. Adjustments to the Agenda 
3. Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) 
1) Minutes of February 15, 2023 
2) Minutes of March 15, 2023 
3) Minutes of January 19, 2022 

B. Approval of Written Decisions 
1) CoA Approval of Application for 301 Hancock St. 
2) CoA Approval of Application for 820 Broad St. 

4. Hearings on Certificates of Appropriateness:  
A. Hearings: Introduction, Swearing-In, Summary of Process 

- Introduction of Hearings and Rules of Procedure 
- Swearing-In of Speakers  
- Summary of the Hearing Process 

Applications:  
B. 305 North Ave. – to include a new infill house.  Continued from previous meeting.  The 

applicants have requested this to be continued again. 



 
 

Everything comes together here. 

C. 100 Middle St. (Doubletree Hotel) – to include reconstruction of the deck in the Tertiary 
AVC.  Continued from previous meeting.  The applicants have requested this to be 
continued again. 

D. 710 New St. – to include demolition of a contributing structure and construction of a new 
infill house. 

E. 719 E. Front St. – to include construction of a new 2-story infill house and detached 
garages. 

F. 411 Broad St. – to include a new pavilion in the Tertiary AVC. 
G. 501 Metcalf St – to include replacing the rear screened porch, enlarging the rear deck, new 

front walkways, a new driveway, and new landscaping, all in the Primary and Secondary 
AVCs. 

H. 222 Middle St – to include three new windows and one new door, all in the Secondary and 
Tertiary AVCs. 

*Please note that applications for these projects, including proposed plans, are available for 
review during normal business hours in the Development Services Department (303 First St.). 

5. Old Business (non-hearing items tabled or continued from a previous meeting): none 
6. General Public Comments 
7. New Business: None 
8. HPC Administrator’s Report: 

A. Report on CoAs Issued 03/04/2023 – 04/06/2023 
MAJORS: 
None – 2 pending  
MINORS: 
214 Johnson St. – driveway, lift 
218 Metcalf St. – handrails, post 
227 E. Front St. – pilasters, lattice 
309 Johnson St. – rear stairs 
314 Fleet St. – doorway roof  
319 Bern St. – signage 
400 Johnson St. – handrail 
406 Metcalf St. – tree replacement 
602 Middle St. – fencing replacement, new fencing 
609 New St. – shed modifications 
624 Hancock St – fencing 
1206 N. Pasteur St. – exterior lighting, bathroom window reduced 
About 8 pending info from applicants 

B. Report on CoA Extensions Issued since the Prior Regular Meeting: none 
C. Other Items and Updates by the Administrator 

9. Commissioners’ Comments  
10. Adjourn 



DRAFT   DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  February 15, 2023 
Page 1 of 11 

 

HPC Reg Mtg Minutes of the 1 
New Bern Historic Preservation Commission 2 

February 15, 2023 – 5:30 P.M. 3 
 4 
The New Bern Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) held its regular meeting on Wednesday, 5 
February 15, 2023, in the Historic Courtroom, Second Floor, City Hall, 303 Pollock St. 6 
 7 
1. OPENING OF MEETING WITH ROLL CALL 8 
 9 
Meeting called to order by Vice-Chair Eure at 5:30 pm. 10 
Members Present: Tripp Eure, Vice-Chair Gregory Rusch 11 
(5 needed for quorum) Dr. Ruth Cox Candace Sullivan (arrived 5:33 pm)  12 
 Jim Morrison Tim Thompson 13 
Members Excused:   Jim Bisbee, Chair; Marc Wartner  14 
Members Absent:  Mollie Bales   15 
A quorum was present. 16 
Staff Present: Matthew Schelly, AICP, City Planner, HPA, HPC Secretary 17 
City Attorney Present:  Jaimee Mosley 18 
Others Present:   (see sworn-in sheet, attached to the minutes) 19 

 20 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S) 21 

No meeting minutes were available. 22 
 23 

3. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 24 
Vice-Chair Eure requested the item for 100 Middle St. be moved to be the last hearing for the 25 
evening. 26 
MOTION by Commissioner Morrison to adjust the agenda to move item C, 100 Middle St., to 27 
come after item D, 301 Hancock St.; second by Commissioner Rusch.  Motion passed 28 
unanimously. 29 
 30 

4. HEARINGS ON CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS:  31 
A. Hearings: Introduction, Swearing-In, Summary of Process 32 

Vice-Chair Eure explained the HPC and the quasi-judicial hearing process and Staff 33 
Schelly swore in the witnesses with the following oath:  34 
“Do you swear to tell the truth to the best of your knowledge?” 35 
The witnesses responded in the affirmative.  The list of the witnesses is attached to the 36 
minutes. 37 
Vice-Chair Eure continued with the summary of the hearing process. 38 

 39 
APPLICATIONS  40 
Vice-Chair Eure called to begin the hearings for the applications for a Certificate of 41 
Appropriateness. 42 

 43 



DRAFT   DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  February 15, 2023 
Page 2 of 11 

 

B. 305 North Ave. – to include a new infill house.  Continued from previous meeting. 44 
Staff Overview of the Application 45 
Staff Schelly provided a review of the application and internal review documents.  The 46 
existence of a staff recommendation was indicated.  47 
Applicant Comment 48 
Vice-Chair Eure asked Mr. Freeman, the applicant, if they had any additional comments.  49 
Mr. Freeman indicated the conceptual house design in the application includes an 50 
unconditioned foyer.  51 
Proponents’ and Opponents’ Comments 52 
Vice-Chair Eure asked if there is anyone present who would like to speak for or against the 53 
application.  No one spoke. 54 
Completeness 55 
Vice-Chair Eure asked the Commission if anyone had any issues with the completeness of 56 
the application. Commissioner Morrison stated that according to procedure the applications 57 
were not available for public viewing, there is not enough detail in the drawings for review, 58 
the HPC members did not have all the info four days before the hearing, and there is not 59 
enough information about the materials to be used for the windows, the siding. He has no 60 
issue with the demolition part; it is just the infill part of the application.  Commissioner 61 
Cox agreed.  Commissioner Thompson explained this is a two-step process – demolition 62 
and infill.  He agreed we have enough information to process the demolition part, however, 63 
the infill part we will have some discussions and questions about the infill part.  VC Eure 64 
reminded the board that this is a two-step approval process.  Speaking to the applicants, 65 
Vice-Chair Eure indicated it seemed that there is enough information to act on the 66 
demolition part, but not for the redevelopment piece.  He also informed the applicant that 67 
while approval of the demolition is a first step, they will need the redevelopment approval 68 
before the actual demolition can occur. Vice-Chair Eure asked the board if they were 69 
comfortable with moving forward with the hearing regarding just the demolition portion of 70 
the application.  There seemed to be a consensus in agreement. 71 
Staff Recommendation 72 
Vice-Chair Eure asked staff to present their recommendations for the demolition portion 73 
of the application, called Deliberation 1. 74 
Staff Schelly submitted the description of the project and the following Historic District 75 
Guidelines, Statements of Reason, and Recommendation as appropriate to this application: 76 
DELIBERATION 1: DEMOLITION 77 
Demolition  78 
6.4.2   79 
6.4.3    80 
6.4.4    81 
6.4.5   82 
In addition, the Guidelines stipulate: “In rendering a decision on a demolition COA, the 83 
HPC should address the following [three] considerations:” 84 
Consideration 1: Address the historical, cultural and architectural significance of the 85 
structure.  86 



DRAFT   DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  February 15, 2023 
Page 3 of 11 

 

• Is it a contributing structure?  87 
o Staff:  Yes, as indicated in the Inventory in the National Register Registration Form 88 

for the Riverside Historic District. 89 
• Is it significant because of its historic use, an event, a person, a builder, or an architect?  90 

o Staff: No. None is indicated in the National Register Registration Form for the 91 
Riverside Historic District, nor is anything or anyone otherwise known to staff. 92 

• Is it the last or the oldest example of a certain building type?  93 
o Staff: This is not indicated in the National Register Registration Form for the 94 

Riverside Historic District, nor is this otherwise known to staff. 95 
Consideration 2: Address the integrity of the structure.  96 
• What are the conditions of foundations, floors, walls, windows, doors and roofs?  97 

o Staff: the applicant has provided substantial evidence that the conditions of these 98 
elements are beyond the state whereby repairs would be possible or reasonable. 99 

• Is it a hazard to public health, safety and welfare?  100 
o Staff: In 2012 the Chief Building Officer has issued an Order that the dwelling was 101 

“unfit for human habitation due to deterioration and defects, increasing the hazard 102 
of fire, accidents, or other calamities.” In addition, the applicant has stated that the 103 
structure is at least occasionally used by trespassers. 104 

Consideration 3: Address attempted preservation efforts.  105 
• Have options for rehabilitation been explored with preservation organizations? 106 

o Staff: no explorations of options for rehabilitation with preservation organizations  107 
are known to the staff.  108 

• Has the applicant been unsuccessful in seeking alternatives to demolition?  109 
o Staff: the applicant has not indicated such to the staff.  110 

• Have alternatives for structure relocation and sale of the property been pursued? 111 
o Staff: the applicant has not indicated such to the staff.  112 

Statements of Reason, based on the information contained in the application, in Staff’s 113 
judgment are: 114 
1. The project is a proposal to demolish a contributing resource. 115 
2. The applicant is proposing a new house for the property, however the design of which 116 

will need to be approved by the HPC. 117 
3. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project 118 

and commented accordingly. 119 
4. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  120 
MOTION FOR DELIBERATON 1 121 
Staff recommends the Commission approve this application to include demolition of 122 
a contributing structure, however the CoA should not be issued at this time and the 123 
demolition may not proceed until the design of the replacement structure is approved 124 
by the HPC and a CoA issued for the replacement.  Then, the CoA for the demolition 125 
can be approved by the HPC to be issued. 126 
Applicant’s Comments 127 
Vice-Chair Eure asked the applicants if they had any additional comments. 128 



DRAFT   DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  February 15, 2023 
Page 4 of 11 

 

The applicants indicated they did not.   129 
Commissioners’ Questions and Comments 130 
Vice-Chair Eure asked the Commissioners if they had any questions or comments. 131 
Commissioner Morrison stated that they have been provided with significant photographic 132 
evidence of the deterioration of the structure and is not a subject for rehabilitation.  133 
Commissioner Cox agreed and added more information about the deterioration of the 134 
structure including reference to conditions of the walls, floors, and ceilings. 135 
Commissioner Thompson reminded that the structure is a contributing structure to the 136 
district.  Thompson also stated that it does not seem to be practical to rehab or move the 137 
structure. 138 
Vice-Chair Eure proceeded by reviewing what has been presented and discussed regarding 139 
the considerations.  Consideration 1: the house is not the last of its building type and not 140 
associated with a historic person or builder; the condition of the house was discussed and 141 
addresses consideration 2; and regarding the preservation of materials in consideration 3, 142 
there is not enough historical material remaining with integrity to allow for the alternatives 143 
indicated. 144 
MOTION by Commissioner Morrison to find the demolition application for 305 North 145 
Avenue to be Not Incongruous with New Bern’s Code of Ordinance sections 15.411 – 146 
15.429 and New Bern’s Historic District Guidelines based on the following specific 147 
guidelines and findings of fact:   148 
Demolition  149 
6.4.2   150 
6.4.3    151 
6.4.4    152 
6.4.5   153 
Discussed Considerations 1, 2, and 3, finding no reasonable path to preserve the property. 154 
The project is a proposal to demolish a contributing resource. 155 
The applicant is proposing a new house for the property, however the design of which will 156 
need to be approved by the HPC. 157 
The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project and 158 
commented accordingly. 159 
The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines to demolish the existing structure.  160 
Commissioner Thompson seconded the motion.  161 
Vice-Chair Eure asked if there was any discussion. 162 
Commissioner Cox requested the motion be AMENDED to add the condition that the 163 
CoA shall not be issued at this time and the demolition may not proceed until the design of 164 
the replacement structure is approved by the HPC and a CoA issued for the replacement.  165 
Then, the CoA for the demolition can be approved by the HPC to be issued. 166 
Commissioner Morrison accepted the amendment. 167 
Commissioner Thompson discussed the possibility of making an exception to the 168 
procedures, which is allowed in the procedures, to allow the demolition before the approval 169 
of the redevelopment.  However, with some uneasiness from other commissioners and 170 
discussion by Vice-Chair Eure, Commissioner Thompson accepted the amendment. 171 



DRAFT   DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  February 15, 2023 
Page 5 of 11 

 

Motion passed unanimously. 172 
Vice-Chair Eure reminded all that no CoA is being issued at this time. 173 
Assistant City Attorney Moseley asked Vice-Chair Eure if he would like to ask the board 174 
for a motion to table the remainder of the application. 175 
MOTION by Commissioner Thompson to continue the application for 305 North Avenue 176 
to the regular meeting on March 15, 2023, in City Hall at 5:30 with the understanding that 177 
the applicant will come back to the HPC Design Review meeting with the necessary 178 
information related to redevelopment of the structure or structures. 179 
Commissioner Cox seconded the motion.  180 
Vice-Chair Eure asked if there was any discussion. 181 
Motion passed unanimously. 182 
 183 

C. 301 Hancock St. – to include modifications to the two-level porch in the Secondary AVC. 184 
Vice-Chair Eure opened this item and indicated he has had ex parte communication with 185 
Anne Hiller, the applicant’s representative, discussing how she could formulate an 186 
approach to coming to the hearing.  He also had ex parte discussions with Richard Parsons, 187 
the President of the New Bern Preservation Foundation, regarding the handling of some 188 
historic material.  Vice-Chair Eure believes neither of these ex parte communications have 189 
biased his opinion on how to handle this application. 190 
Tim Thompson indicated that he was the President of the New Bern Preservation 191 
Foundation at the time the current owner, Ms. Hiller, and the Foundation were both trying 192 
to buy the property.  He also contacted Richard Parsons, the current President of the New 193 
Bern Preservation Foundation, to let him know that the Foundation might want to try to 194 
sort out the current situation at this property.  Commissioner Thompson stated he believes 195 
that these communications will not bias his opinion or ability to deliberate this evening. 196 
Conflict  197 
Vice-Chair Eure asked the Commission if anyone has a conflict of interest for this project.   198 
No one responded. 199 
Completeness 200 
Vice-Chair Eure asked the Commission if anyone had any issues with the completeness of 201 
the application.   202 
No one responded. 203 
Staff Overview of the Application 204 
Staff Schelly provided a review of the application and internal review documents.  The 205 
existence of a staff recommendation was indicated.  206 
Applicant Comment 207 
Vice-Chair Eure asked Anne Hiller, authorized representative for the applicant, if they had 208 
any additional comments.  Ms. Hiller indicated they will do whatever the HPC wants her 209 
to do.  210 
Proponents’ and Opponents’ Comments 211 
Vice-Chair Eure asked if there is anyone who would like to speak for or against the 212 
application.  No one spoke. 213 
Staff Recommendation 214 



DRAFT   DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  February 15, 2023 
Page 6 of 11 

 

Staff Schelly submitted the description of the project, including a relevant excerpt from 215 
The Historic Architecture of New Bern and Craven County, North Carolina, by Peter B. 216 
Sandbeck, 1988, for the subject property, including: 217 
“Of the very few brick outbuildings and dependencies still surviving in New Bern, this 218 
two-story combined office and quarters is the most charming and well preserved.  … The 219 
attractive two-story side porch appears to date from the 1870s; its picturesque sawnwork 220 
brackets and railings add much to the character of the building.  Sheltered under the porch 221 
is a surprisingly elaborate Victorian stair with a heavy turned newel and turned balusters.  222 
This replaced or supplemented the original but now-removed interior stairway, …” 223 
Schelly also cited the following Historic District Guidelines, Statements of Reason, and 224 
Recommendation as appropriate to this application: 225 
Modifications  226 
3.2.2   227 
3.2.3   228 
3.2.4   229 
Wood 230 
5.2.1    231 
5.2.2   232 
Paint 233 
5.4.1    234 
5.4.2    235 
5.4.3    236 
5.4.4   237 
Section 6.1  238 
Wood Maintenance 239 
6.1.5    240 
6.1.6    241 
6.1.7   242 
Paint Maintenance 243 
6.1.11    244 
6.1.12   245 
Statements of Reason, based on the information contained in the application, in Staff’s 246 
judgment are: 247 

1. The project is located in the Dense Fabric development pattern; 248 
2. The proposal is removal of a Victorian exterior stairway, banister, and second floor 249 

stairway opening railings, plus modifications to close in the stairway opening, and 250 
to repair and replace deteriorated materials for the first floor porch flooring, the 251 
second floor porch flooring, a few second floor sawnwork porch railing balusters, 252 
and second floor siding; 253 

3. The Victorian exterior stairway is noted and described in The Historic Architecture 254 
of New Bern and Craven County, North Carolina, by Peter Sandbeck; 255 



DRAFT   DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  February 15, 2023 
Page 7 of 11 

 

4. Due to failure to meet the requirements of Guidelines 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 5.2.1, section 256 
6.1, and Guideline 6.1.5, the proposal to remove the Victorian exterior stairway, 257 
baluster, and railings does not meet the requirements of the Guidelines;  258 

5. The proposed design, components, and materials of the replacement porch decking 259 
and the house siding portion of the application do meet the requirements of the 260 
Guidelines. 261 

6. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this 262 
project and commented accordingly; 263 

7. The stairway removal portion of the application is incongruous with the Guidelines 264 
and the porch decking portion of the application is not incongruous with the 265 
Guidelines. 266 

Staff recommends the Commission approve the portion of this application for the 267 
proposed modifications to repair and replace deteriorated materials for the first floor porch 268 
flooring, the second floor porch flooring, a few second floor sawnwork porch railing 269 
balusters, and second floor siding in the Secondary AVC, and to deny the portion regarding 270 
removal of the Victorian exterior stairway, banister, and second floor stairway opening 271 
railings, plus modifications to close in the stairway opening, in the Secondary AVC. 272 
Applicant’s Comments 273 
Vice-Chair Eure asked the applicants if they had any additional comments. 274 
Anne Hiller indicated they found the stairway, have most of the tread that were not 275 
disposable, saved the newel posts, so they can replace the stairway. 276 
Chair’s Clarifications 277 
Vice-Chair Eure reminded the board at this time that some work had taken place before the 278 
issuance of a CoA. 279 
Vice-Chair Eure and Anne Hiller recapped the proposal of the application to include: 280 
replace stair and balustrade, including the opening in the second floor; remove storage area 281 
under stairs, slight modification of the porch structure and decking, replace in-kind some 282 
second story balusters, replace second floor siding. 283 
Commissioners’ Questions and Comments 284 
Vice-Chair Eure asked the Commissioners if they had any questions or comments. 285 
Commissioner Sullivan asked why the HPC would make an exception to the Guidelines to 286 
allow removal of the stairway. 287 
Commissioner Morrison stated it is hard to get around the stairway being a significant 288 
feature of the architecture of the house, not an interior feature. 289 
Commissioner Sullivan asked Vice-Chair Eure if the proposal had been to remove the 290 
stairway prior to having removed the stairway, if it might not have been approved. Vice-291 
Chair Eure agreed that that it might not have. 292 
Vice-Chair Eure stressed that the motion maker needs to be clear about whether to replace 293 
the stairway or not. 294 
Commissioner Rusch asked if the stairway had already been moved from the interior to the 295 
exterior location. 296 
Vice-Chair Eure clarified that the move to the exterior was about 100 years ago and had 297 
probably achieved historical significance in that location in its own right. 298 



DRAFT   DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  February 15, 2023 
Page 8 of 11 

 

Commissioner Thompson stated that the HPC puts a lot of weight on the descriptions in 299 
the Peter Sandbeck book.  The stairway is mentioned in his book and therefore significant 300 
because of that.  301 
Commission Morrison asked if the HPC allowed it to be moved inside, where does that 302 
stop. 303 
Commissioner Thompson reminded the board that removal of the stairway is not part of 304 
the application. 305 
MOTION by Commissioner Thompson to find the application for 301 Hancock St. to be 306 
Not Incongruous with New Bern’s Code of Ordinance sections 15.411 – 15.429 and New 307 
Bern’s Historic District Guidelines based on the following specific guidelines and findings 308 
of fact:   309 

Modifications  310 
3.2.2   311 
3.2.3   312 
3.2.4   313 
Wood 314 
5.2.1    315 
5.2.2   316 
Paint 317 
5.4.1    318 
5.4.2    319 
5.4.3    320 
5.4.4   321 
Section 6.1  322 
Wood Maintenance 323 
6.1.5    324 
6.1.6    325 
6.1.7   326 
Paint Maintenance 327 
6.1.11    328 
6.1.12   329 

Findings of Fact, are: 330 
1. The project is located in the Downtown Historic District; 331 
2. The items we are asked to consider, the stairway, the porch decking that has been 332 

replaced without a CoA, the wood siding where the Tyvek is exposed, and whether 333 
the stairway needs to be functional or not; 334 

3. The stairway needs to be reconstructed with any original, existing materials, the 335 
handrails, balustrades and so forth; the decking needs to be replaced as it was before 336 
being removed;  337 

4. The following Guidelines under consideration, the application does not meet the 338 
guidelines of 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 5.2.1, and 6.1.5.  That has to do with 3.2.2 has not been 339 
met – modifications to a structure should not conceal, damage, or remove 340 
significant design components or architectural features; 3.2.3 -  Replace historic 341 



DRAFT   DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  February 15, 2023 
Page 9 of 11 

 

design components only if they are damaged beyond repair. Replacement for 342 
convenience is not appropriate. Use materials and details that match the original; 343 
5.2.1 - Adhere to Preservation Guidelines for retention of historic fabric when 344 
altering wood materials; and then 6.1.5 – Retain and preserve siding, fenestration, 345 
trim and ornamentation. Maintain wood features such as beaded and shaped edges, 346 
lathe turned profiles and decorative surfaces that have been milled, joined and 347 
routed.  Failure to meet guidelines 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 5.2.1, and 6.1.5 mainly have to do 348 
with the exterior stairway that was removed. 349 
The porch decking that is in place does not meet the guidelines in the sense of 350 
replacing decking in scale, proportion and so forth with decking that matches what 351 
was there before. 352 
To summarize, the stairway needs to be put back, it needs to be a functional 353 
stairway, the wood siding meets the guidelines, the porch decking needs to be put 354 
back in its pre-existing configuration. 355 

Commissioner Cox seconded the motion.  356 
Vice-Chair Eure asked Commissioner Thompson if he meant to include the second floor 357 
porch balusters are to be replaced in-kind.  Commissioner Thompson agreed to add the 358 
replacement of the upper floor balusters in-kind to his motion. 359 
Vice-Chair Eure asked Commissioner Thompson if he meant to include the little storage 360 
room under the stairs.  Commissioner Thompson agreed to add the replacement of the little 361 
storage room under the stairs to his motion. 362 
Commissioner Cox agreed to the amendments to the motion.  363 
Vice-Chair Eure clarified that the new porch flooring that was installed appears to be 2x6 364 
lumber, whereas the previous porch flooring was probably 4-inch tongue and groove with 365 
¾ to 1 inch in thickness. 366 
Commissioner Morrison added that the current motion reflects what the HPC would have 367 
decided if the application had come to the Commission prior to beginning work. 368 
Commissioner Rusch suggested amending the motion to allow the upper porch flooring to 369 
remain with the current material. 370 
Commissioner Thompson did not accept the amendment to the motion. 371 
Motion passed unanimously. 372 
MOTION by Commissioner Cox to issue the CoA; Second by Commissioner Morrison. 373 
Motion passed unanimously. 374 
 375 

D. 100 Middle St. (Doubletree Hotel) – to include reconstruction of the deck in the Tertiary 376 
AVC. 377 
Conflict  378 
Vice-Chair Eure indicated to the Commission that he has a conflict of interest for this 379 
project since an architect in his office is working with the Doubletree Hotel client on 380 
another project.  He then indicated a Temporary Chair would need to be appointed. 381 
MOTION by Commissioner Morrison for Commissioner Cox to be the Temporary Chair 382 
for the 100 Middle St. hearing.  Second by Commissioner Thompson. 383 
Motion passed unanimously. 384 



DRAFT   DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  February 15, 2023 
Page 10 of 11 

 

Temporary Chair Cox requested a motion to recuse Vice Chair Eure for the 100 Middle St. 385 
hearing. 386 
MOTION to recuse Vice-Chair Eure by Commissioner Thompson since he is working on 387 
a part of the project for the hotel.  Second by Commissioner Morrison. 388 
Motion passed unanimously. Vice-Chair Eure stepped down. 389 
Staff Overview of the Application 390 
Staff Schelly provided a review of the application and internal review documents.  The 391 
existence of a staff recommendation was indicated.  392 
Applicant Comment 393 
Temporary Chair Cox asked Mr. Dean Quadir, authorized representative for the applicant, 394 
if they had any additional comments.  Mr. Quadir indicated they are still working with the 395 
City for a new encroachment agreement. 396 
Assistant City Attorney Moseley clarified that the existing license agreement was put in 397 
place and approved by the Aldermen many years ago and the applicant has indicated that 398 
a new license agreement would be needed for this project.  She further advised that the 399 
HPC not approve a project that does not have the legal right for the project on the property. 400 
Commissioner Thompson suggested the HPC might handle this as a condition of the CoA. 401 
Assistant City Attorney Moseley indicated that an approval by the HPC can lead an 402 
applicant to believe they have approval to proceed with a project.  ACA Moseley then 403 
suggested continuing the application to allow the applicant to achieve the necessary 404 
entitlements. 405 
The applicant’s representative stated they have no issue to a continuation of the application. 406 
MOTION by Commissioner Morrison to continue the hearing on the application for 100 407 
Middle St. to the March 15, 2023, HPC meeting, 5:30 pm in the City Hall, second floor.  408 
Second by Commissioner Thompson. 409 
Motion passed unanimously. 410 
Reseating Recused Commissioner 411 
MOTION by Commissioner Rusch to reseat Vice-Chair Eure.  Second by Commissioner 412 
Sullivan. 413 
Motion passed unanimously.  Vice-Chair Eure returned to the dais. 414 
 415 

5. OLD BUSINESS (non-hearing items tabled or continued from a previous meeting) 416 
Vice-Chair Eure indicated there is no old business. 417 
 418 

6. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 419 
No one spoke. 420 
 421 

7. NEW BUSINESS:  422 
Vice-Chair Eure indicated there is no new business. 423 

 424 
8. HPC ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 425 

A. Report on CoAs Issued 01/12/2023 – 02/03/2023 426 



DRAFT   DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  February 15, 2023 
Page 11 of 11 

 

Vice-Chair Eure introduced the list in the agenda (below).  Vice-Chair Eure asked if Staff 427 
Schelly had anything to highlight here. 428 
Staff Schelly pointed out that all five of the CoAs approved at the last Regular meeting 429 
have been issued and the number of Minor Work CoAs has been reduced from the number 430 
shown in the agenda. 431 
MAJORS: 432 
302 Broad St. (Courthouse) – addition and modifications 433 
305 Bern St. – shed 434 
720 E. Front St. – infill house and rear garage 435 
1206 N. Pasteur St. – driveway 436 
1512, 1516 National Ave. and 407 North Ave. - fencing 437 
MINORS: 438 
211 Johnson St. – tree replacement 439 
222 Middle St. – rear windows, repointing 440 
300 Pollock St. – repointing 441 
312 Avenue A – trees replacement 442 
709-711 Pollock – tree replacement 443 
15 pending 444 
 445 

B. Other Items and Updates 446 
Staff Schelly added to remind the board about the upcoming Resiliency Listening Session 447 
the next day. He also asked someone from the board to attend in order to meet an employee 448 
of the state agency that provided some of the funding for the Resiliency Plan and who is 449 
personally interested in historic preservation commissions. 450 
Staff Schelly also reminded the board that a training session will be held prior to the 451 
upcoming HPC Design Review Meeting. 452 

 453 
9. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS: 454 

No one spoke. 455 
 456 
10. ADJOURN: 457 

Motion to adjourn the meeting:  Commissioner Cox; Second by Commissioner Morrison. 458 
Motion passed unanimously. 459 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:33 pm. 460 
 461 
 462 
Minutes approved: April 19, 2023 463 
 464 
 465 
____________________________ ______________________________________ 466 
 467 
Jim Bisbee, Chair Matthew Schelly, City Planner, HPC Secretary 468 



Placeholder for the Minutes of the 
March 15, 2023 HPC Regular Meeting



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 1 of 25 

 

Minutes of the 1 
New Bern Historic Preservation Commission 2 

January 19, 2022 – 5:30 P.M. 3 
 4 
The New Bern Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) held its regular meeting on Wednesday, 5 
January 19, 2022, in the Historic Courtroom, Second Floor, City Hall, 303 Pollock St. 6 
 7 
1. OPENING OF MEETING WITH ROLL CALL 8 
 9 
Meeting called to order by Chair Cox at 5:30 pm. 10 
 11 
Members Present: Dr. Ruth Cox, Chair Tony Bryant (left approx. 6:45) 12 
(5 needed for quorum) Tripp Eure, Vice-Chair Ellen Sheridan  13 
 Jim Bisbee Annette Stone 14 
 Peggy Broadway (left approx. 8:15) Candace Sullivan  15 
 16 
Members Excused:   None  17 
Members Absent:  John Blackwelder   18 
A quorum was present. 19 
Staff Present: Matthew Schelly, AICP, City Planner, HPA, HPC Secretary 20 
City Attorney Present:  Jaimee Mosley 21 
Others Present:   (see sworn-in sheet, attached to the minutes) 22 

 23 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S) 24 

MOTION to waive reading the 11/17/21 minutes:  Vice Chair Eure; Second by 25 
Commissioner Bisbee. 26 
Motion passed unanimously. 27 
MOTION to approve the 11/17/21 minutes:  Commissioner Broadway; Second by 28 
Commissioner Bryant. 29 
Motion passed unanimously. 30 
 31 

3. HEARINGS ON CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS:  32 
A. Hearings: Introduction, Swearing-In, Summary of Process 33 

Chair Cox explained the HPC and the quasi-judicial hearing process and Staff Schelly 34 
swore in the witnesses with the following oath:  35 
“Do you swear to tell the truth to the best of your knowledge?” 36 
The witnesses responded in the affirmative.  The list of the witnesses is attached to the 37 
minutes. 38 

 39 
APPLICATIONS  40 
Chair Cox called to begin the hearings for the applications for a Certificate of Appropriateness. 41 

 42 
B. 211 Johnson St. – to include a landscape plan in the Secondary and Tertiary AVCs. 43 

Staff Overview of the Application 44 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 2 of 25 

 

Staff Schelly provided a review of the application and internal review documents.  The 45 
existence of a staff recommendation was indicated.  46 
Conflict  47 
Chair Cox asked the Commission if anyone has a conflict of interest for this project.   48 
Commissioner Broadway indicated she received a notification letter for this project and 49 
therefore requests to be recused from this case.   50 
MOTION to recuse Commissioner Broadway:  Commissioner Bisbee;  second 51 
Commissioner Bryant. 52 
Motion passed unanimously. Commissioner Broadway stepped down. 53 
Completeness 54 
Chair Cox asked the Commission if anyone had any issues with the completeness of the 55 
application.  There was no response.   56 
Applicant Comment 57 
Chair Cox asked Ms. Tessa O’Regan, authorized representative for the applicant, if they 58 
had any additional comments.  Ms. O’Regan indicated they had none.  59 
Proponents’ and Opponents’ Comments 60 
Chair Cox asked if there is anyone who has received notice or has standing in this 61 
application, is a proponent of the application, and would like to present evidence.  The 62 
following spoke: 63 
Ms. Peggy Broadway agreed that is appropriate for the Southern Magnolia to be removed, 64 
but asked if the River Birch could have one of its stems removed instead of removing the 65 
entire tree.  Staff Schelly responded by reviewing the Certified Arborist’s report for the 66 
River Birch in detail.  The report included the arborist’s recommendation to remove the 67 
tree.   68 
Ms. Broadway followed up by asking if the application is only concerned with the 69 
Magnolia and the River Birch or also the other trees to be removed.  Chair Cox asked Ms. 70 
O’Regan to answer this question.  Ms. O’Regan referred to the chart on the plans that 71 
indicate 19 trees will be removed, why each one will be removed, and with what they will 72 
be replaced, resulting in 29 new trees, with two other trees transplanted.  Staff Schelly also 73 
referred to the applicant’s photos of the trees.    74 
Chair Cox asked if there is plan for where the new trees will be planted.  Staff Schelly 75 
reviewed the landscape plan, pointing out all the trees, by name and amount. 76 
Ms. Broadway expressed concern that a private arborist might not be fully objective since 77 
the owner pays them.  Chair Cox indicated that is a discussion for a Design Review 78 
meeting. 79 
Others with Evidence 80 
Chair Cox asked if there was anyone who has relevant evidence and standing and would 81 
like to speak.  None spoke.   82 
Staff Recommendation 83 
Staff Schelly submitted the description of the project and the following Historic District 84 
Guidelines, Statements of Reason, and Recommendation as appropriate to this application: 85 

Landscaping 86 
2.4.1    87 
2.4.3    88 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 3 of 25 

 

2.4.4    89 
2.4.7   90 

Statements of Reason, based on the information contained in the application, in Staff’s 91 
judgment are: 92 

1. The site is a contributing resource in the Tight Weave development pattern; 93 
2. The proposal is a landscaping project within the Secondary and Tertiary AVCs; 94 
3. The proposed design, components, and materials meet the requirements of the 95 

Guidelines; 96 
4. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this 97 

project and commented accordingly; 98 
5. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  99 

Staff recommends the Commission approve this application to include a landscape plan 100 
in the Secondary and Tertiary AVCs. 101 
Others with Evidence 102 
Chair Cox asked if there was anyone from the State, City, or any government body and 103 
would like to speak.  None spoke. 104 
Applicant’s Comments 105 
Chair Cox asked the applicants if they had any additional comments. 106 
Ms. O’Regan indicated they had no additional comments.  107 
Commissioners’ Questions and Comments 108 
Chair Cox asked the Commissioners if they had any questions or comments. None spoke. 109 
 110 
MOTION by Commissioner Bisbee to find the application for 211 Johnson St. to be Not 111 
Incongruous with New Bern’s Code of Ordinance sections 15.411 – 15.429 and New 112 
Bern’s Historic District Guidelines based on the following specific guidelines and 113 
findings of fact:   114 

Landscaping 115 
2.4.1    116 
2.4.3    117 
2.4.4    118 
2.4.7   119 

Findings of Fact are: 120 
1. The site is a contributing resource in the Tight Weave development pattern; 121 
2. The proposal is a landscaping project within the Secondary and Tertiary AVCs; 122 
3. The proposed design, components, and materials meet the requirements of the 123 

Guidelines; 124 
4. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this 125 

project and commented accordingly; 126 
5. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  127 

Commissioner Sheridan seconded the motion.  128 
Motion passed unanimously. 129 
 130 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 4 of 25 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Stone to issue the CoA; Second by Commissioner Bisbee. 131 
Motion passed unanimously. 132 
 133 
Reseating Recused Commissioner 134 
MOTION by Commissioner Bryant to reseat Commissioner Broadway; Second by Vice 135 
Chair Eure. 136 
Motion passed unanimously.  Commissioner Broadway returned to the dais. 137 
 138 

C. 302 Broad St. – to include application of a masonry water repellant in all AVCs. 139 
Staff Schelly indicated that the applicants have requested to have their application 140 
continued to the next Regular Meeting on February 16, 2022. 141 
 142 
MOTION by Vice Chair Eure at the applicant’s request to continue the application for 302 143 
Broad St. to the February 16, 2022 meeting, 5:30 pm, City Hall Courtroom; second 144 
Commissioner Bisbee. 145 
Motion passed unanimously. 146 
 147 

D. 221 S. Front St. – to include a 1-story addition and site modifications on the Secondary 148 
and Tertiary AVCs. 149 
Conflict  150 
Vice Chair Eure indicated his firm represents the applicants for this project and the 211 151 
Pollock St. project and therefore requests to be recused from both cases.   152 
MOTION: Commissioner Bryant; second Commissioner Sullivan.  153 
Motion passed unanimously.  Vice Chair Eure stepped down. 154 
Staff Schelly asked the Commission if anyone else has a conflict of interest for this project.  155 
There was no response.  156 
Staff Overview of the Application 157 
Staff Schelly provided a review of the application and internal review documents.  The 158 
existence of a staff recommendation was indicated.  159 
Applicant Comment 160 
Chair Cox asked Mr. Tripp Eure, authorized representative for the applicant, if they had 161 
any additional comments.  Mr. Eure added that they have modified the plans due to the 162 
discussion at HPC’s February 2 Design Review Meeting, such as a lower clerestory and a 163 
taller wall and fence at the entryway. 164 
Commissioner Broadway asked if the doors on the south elevation are entrance doors.  165 
Mr. Eure answered that there are many doors on the south elevation, but the ones to which 166 
she is referring are rear entrance doors from the deck area. 167 
Mr. Eure added that the historic photo added to the application shows several low buildings 168 
in the area to the south of the Harvey Mansion, including one building with large, garage-169 
door-like openings. 170 
Proponents’ and Opponents’ Comments 171 
Chair Cox asked if there is anyone who has received notice or has standing in this 172 
application, is a proponent of the application, and would like to present evidence.  Nobody 173 
Spoke.  174 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 5 of 25 

 

Others with Evidence 175 
Chair Cox asked if there was anyone who has relevant evidence and standing and would 176 
like to speak.  None spoke.   177 
Chair Cox asked if there was anyone from the State, City, or any government body and 178 
would like to speak.  None spoke. 179 
Staff Recommendation 180 
Staff Schelly submitted the description of the project and the following Historic District 181 
Guidelines, Statements of Reason, and Recommendation as appropriate to this application: 182 

Public and Open Spaces 183 
2.2.1  184 
Utilities 185 
2.3.1  186 
2.3.2  187 
2.3.6  188 
Landscaping 189 
2.4.3   190 
2.4.4  191 
2.4.7  192 
Fences and Garden Walls 193 
2.5.1   194 
2.5.2   195 
2.5.3  196 
Parking  197 
2.7.5  198 
Signage 199 
2.8.2  200 
Design Principles 201 
3.1.1   202 
3.1.2   203 
3.1.3   204 
3.1.4   205 
3.1.5  206 
Modifications  207 
3.2.1   208 
3.2.2  209 
3.2.4  210 
Additions 211 
3.3.1   212 
3.3.2  213 
Foundations 214 
4.1.1   215 
4.1.3   216 
4.1.4   217 
4.1.5   218 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 6 of 25 

 

4.1.6  219 
Walls, Trim and Ornamentation 220 
4.2.1   221 
4.2.2   222 
4.2.4  223 
Windows, Doors and Openings 224 
4.3.1  225 
4.3.2   226 
4.3.3  227 
Entrances 228 
4.4.1  229 
4.4.4  230 
Roofs 231 
4.5.4   232 
4.5.6  233 
Decks and Patios 234 
4.6.2  235 
Accessibility and Life Safety 236 
4.7.2  237 
Masonry  238 
5.1.1  239 
5.1.2   240 
5.1.3  241 
5.1.4   242 
5.1.5  243 
Wood 244 
5.2.1  245 
5.2.2  246 
Metals  247 
5.3.3   248 
5.3.4  249 
Paint 250 
5.4.1  251 
5.4.2  252 
5.4.3  253 
5.4.4  254 

Statements of Reason, based on the information contained in the application, in Staff’s 255 
judgment are: 256 

1. The project is located in the Dense Fabric development pattern; 257 
2. The proposal is an addition and site work project; 258 
3. The proposed design, components, and materials meet the requirements of the 259 

Guidelines; 260 
4. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this 261 

project and commented accordingly; 262 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 7 of 25 

 

5. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  263 
Staff recommends the Commission approve this application to include a 1-story addition 264 
and site modifications in the Secondary and Tertiary AVCs with the condition that kitchen 265 
exhaust hoods and other mechanical appurtenances be submitted to the HPA for their or HPC 266 
review. 267 
Applicant’s Comments 268 
Chair Cox asked the applicants if they had any additional comments. 269 
Mr. Eure indicated they had no additional comments.  270 
Commissioners’ Questions and Comments 271 
Chair Cox asked the Commissioners if they had any questions or comments. 272 
Commissioner Bisbee asked for an explanation of the situation regarding the project not 273 
meeting the land use requirements.  Staff Schelly explained that the Land Use 274 
Administrator indicated that the project needs to maintain or not reduce the existing number 275 
of parking spaces.  Commissioner Bisbee asked if that condition was met, then zoning 276 
would be ok.  Chair Cox followed up by asking how many spaces are involved.  Mr. Eure 277 
said 17 parking spaces, but also provided additional background information.  They have 278 
been talking to the planning department to identify a number of possibilities in order to 279 
comply with the requirements.  Mr. Eure also pointed out that there is no road map for how 280 
to proceed through the approval process for the various permits that are required, so he 281 
advised his client that the HPC determines the viability of the project and with an HPC 282 
approval then go to the planning department to work out solutions to their issues.   283 
Chair Cox reminded the HPC members that this maybe should be included as a condition 284 
in a motion of approval.  ACA Mosley suggested the condition include a provision that 285 
construction not begin until the project complies with the requirements of the land use 286 
ordinance as determined by the Land Use Administrator. 287 
Commissioner Broadway asked how many seats are in the restaurant.  Mr. Eure answered 288 
that there are about 75 to 100 chairs. 289 
Commissioner Broadway also asked if the double doors on the south side of the building 290 
are an entrance.  Mr. Eure indicated there are not any double doors on the back, but there 291 
is access from the south side. 292 
Chair Cox asked about the overhead doors.  Mr. Eure said they are the doors for which 293 
manufacturer’s information has been provided.  Commissioner Bisbee followed up by 294 
asking why the doors are overhead doors.  Mr. Eure said they are to be opened when the 295 
weather is nice and open to the rear elevated terrace. 296 
Chair Cox asked a few questions about the flood level.  Mr. Eure explained the conditions 297 
for the existing building and the proposed conditions.  To summarize, the proposal is to 298 
use a wet-proofing approach which is to build so the materials below the flood elevation 299 
can be hosed out and not need to be replaced and new electrical and mechanical aspects 300 
will be above the required flood elevation.  The proposal will need to comply with all the 301 
requirements of the flood ordinance. 302 
Chair Cox asked for the applicant to review the changes to the entry way that were 303 
discussed at the Design Review Meeting.  Mr. Eure went over the changes to the entry 304 
tower, the entry garden wall, and entry fencing and gate. 305 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 8 of 25 

 

Commissioner Broadway asked about handicapped ramps.  The two proposed ramps were 306 
explained, one in front, one in back. 307 
Chair Cox asked if there was any more information about the plantings.  Mr. Eure indicated 308 
the applicants would like to come back later with that information. 309 
Chair Cox asked for any other questions from the Commissioners.  There were none. 310 
 311 
Chair Cox clarified that the motion for the application should include the issue about the 312 
parking spaces and the flood elevation compliance need to be resolved before final 313 
approval. 314 
Staff Schelly reminded Chair Cox that the staff recommendation includes to have the 315 
appurtenances for the kitchen exhausts be brought back to the HPC or the HPA for 316 
approval. 317 
Chair Cox also added the specifics of the plantings, too. 318 
 319 
MOTION by Commissioner Bisbee to find the application for 221 S. Front St. to be Not 320 
Incongruous with New Bern’s Code of Ordinance sections 15.411 – 15.429 and New 321 
Bern’s Historic District Guidelines based on the following specific guidelines and 322 
findings of fact:   323 
Public and Open Spaces 324 
2.2.1  325 
Utilities 326 
2.3.1  327 
2.3.2  328 
2.3.6  329 
Landscaping 330 
2.4.3   331 
2.4.4  332 
2.4.7  333 
Fences and Garden Walls 334 
2.5.1   335 
2.5.2   336 
2.5.3  337 
Parking  338 
2.7.5  339 
Signage 340 
2.8.2  341 
Design Principles 342 
3.1.1   343 
3.1.2   344 
3.1.3   345 
3.1.4   346 
3.1.5  347 
Modifications  348 
3.2.1   349 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 9 of 25 

 

3.2.2  350 
3.2.4  351 
Additions 352 
3.3.1   353 
3.3.2  354 
Foundations 355 
4.1.1   356 
4.1.3   357 
4.1.4   358 
4.1.5   359 
4.1.6  360 
Walls, Trim and Ornamentation 361 
4.2.1   362 
4.2.2   363 
4.2.4  364 
Windows, Doors and Openings 365 
4.3.1  366 
4.3.2   367 
4.3.3  368 
Entrances 369 
4.4.1  370 
4.4.4  371 
Roofs 372 
4.5.4   373 
4.5.6  374 
Decks and Patios 375 
4.6.2  376 
Accessibility and Life Safety 377 
4.7.2  378 
Masonry  379 
5.1.1  380 
5.1.2   381 
5.1.3  382 
5.1.4   383 
5.1.5  384 
Wood 385 
5.2.1  386 
5.2.2  387 
Metals  388 
5.3.3   389 
5.3.4  390 
Paint 391 
5.4.1  392 
5.4.2  393 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 10 of 25 

 

5.4.3  394 
5.4.4  395 
Findings of Fact are: 396 
1. The project is located in the Dense Fabric development pattern; 397 
2. The proposal is an addition and site work project; 398 
3. The proposed design, components, and materials meet the requirements of the 399 

Guidelines; 400 
4. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project 401 

and commented accordingly; 402 
5. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  403 
Approval includes the following conditions:   404 
1. The construction may not begin until the project is compliant with the land use 405 

ordinance as determined by the City’s Zoning Administrator. 406 
2. The construction may not begin until the project is compliant with the flood ordinance 407 

as determined by the City’s inspections department. 408 
3. The applicant present a landscape design plan to the HPC at a later time. 409 
4. The kitchen exhaust hoods and other appurtenances will not be installed until reviewed 410 

by the HPC at a later time. 411 
 412 
Commissioner Sheridan seconded the motion.  413 
Motion passed unanimously. 414 
 415 
MOTION by Commissioner Broadway to issue the CoA with all the conditions; Second by 416 
Commissioner Bisbee. 417 
Motion passed unanimously. 418 
 419 

E. 211 Pollock St. – to include a rear addition, new walk-in freezer, new recessed side entrance, 420 
closing 7 windows, new waterproofing trim, painting waterproofing, new wall-mounted 421 
lighting, and new mechanical units on platforms, all in the Secondary and Tertiary AVCs. 422 
Staff Overview of the Application 423 
Staff Schelly provided a review of the application and internal review documents.  The 424 
existence of a staff recommendation was indicated.  425 
Conflict  426 
Chair Cox asked the Commission if anyone has a conflict of interest for this project.  There 427 
was no response.  428 
Applicant Comment 429 
Chair Cox asked Tripp Eure, authorized representative for the applicant, if they had any 430 
additional comments.  Mr. Eure indicated the application is exactly the same as presented 431 
and discussed at the Design Review Meeting.  432 
Proponents’ and Opponents’ Comments 433 
Chair Cox asked if there is anyone who has received notice or has standing in this 434 
application, is a proponent of the application, and would like to present evidence.  Nobody 435 
Spoke.  436 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 11 of 25 

 

Chair Cox asked if there is anyone who has received notice or has standing in this 437 
application, is an opponent of the application, and would like to present evidence.  Nobody 438 
Spoke.   439 
Others with Evidence 440 
Chair Cox asked if there was anyone from the State, City, or any government body and 441 
would like to speak.  None spoke. 442 
Chair Cox asked if there was anyone who has relevant evidence and standing and would 443 
like to speak.  None spoke.   444 
Staff Recommendation 445 
Staff Schelly submitted the description of the project and the following Historic District 446 
Guidelines, Statements of Reason, and Recommendation as appropriate to this application: 447 
Utilities 448 
2.3.1    449 
2.3.2   450 
Design Principles  451 
3.1.1    452 
3.1.2   453 
3.1.4    454 
Modifications 455 
3.2.1    456 
3.2.2   457 
Additions 458 
3.3.1    459 
3.3.2   460 
3.3.3   461 
Foundations 462 
4.1.1    463 
4.1.2    464 
4.1.3   465 
Walls, Trim and Ornamentation 466 
4.2.1    467 
4.2.4   468 
Windows, Doors and Openings 469 
4.3.1    470 
4.3.2   471 
Entrances 472 
4.4.1    473 
4.4.3   474 
Roofs 475 
4.5.6   476 
Masonry  477 
5.1.2   478 
5.1.4   479 
5.1.5   480 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 12 of 25 

 

Paint 481 
5.4.2    482 
5.4.3    483 
5.4.4   484 
Contemporary Materials 485 
5.5.2   486 
5.5.6   487 
Statements of Reason, based on the information contained in the application, in Staff’s 488 
judgment are: 489 
1. The project is located in the Tight Weave development pattern; 490 
2. The proposal is an addition and modification project; 491 
3. The proposed design, components, and materials meet the requirements of the 492 

Guidelines; 493 
4. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project 494 

and commented accordingly; 495 
5. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  496 
Staff recommends the Commission approve this application to include a rear addition, new 497 
walk-in freezer, new recessed side entrance, closing 7 windows, new waterproofing trim, 498 
painting waterproofing, new wall-mounted lighting, new mechanical units on platforms, and 499 
a new front door, all in the Secondary and Tertiary AVCs. 500 
Applicant’s Comments 501 
Chair Cox asked the applicants if they had any additional comments. 502 
Mr. Eure indicated they had none. 503 
Commissioners’ Questions and Comments 504 
Chair Cox asked the Commissioners if they had any questions or comments. 505 
Commissioner Broadway and Chair Cox asked, relative to the need to close all the 506 
windows, why the windows need to be closed, if there is seating inside and if so, how much 507 
seating. Mr. Eure answered that the windows need to be closed because the western wall 508 
is required to be a fire wall and the other two because the kitchen is to be located there.  509 
Also, there will be 40 to 50 seats inside.   510 
Chair Cox asked why a new door is needed on the east side.  Mr. Eure answered it is needed 511 
as a second means of egress. 512 
Chair Cox asked about flood proofing the new door.  Mr. Eure answered that the owner 513 
will be providing temporary gates when needed prior to a flood.  Chair Cox asked if that 514 
would be required to be added to the application.  Mr. Eure replied that it was seen as a 515 
temporary treatment.  Staff Schelly responded that in the event some permanent 516 
construction is needed, such as brackets or channels, for the temporary gate, that should be 517 
reviewed and approved.  Mr. Eure would accept that as a condition of the approval. 518 
Commissioner Broadway asked if the parking was at the rear of the building and customers 519 
would walk around to the front to enter the building.  Mr. Eure answered that would be the 520 
case. 521 
Chair Cox asked for any other questions from the Commissioners.  There were none. 522 
MOTION by Commissioner Bisbee to find the application for 211 Pollock St. Not 523 
Incongruous with New Bern’s Code of Ordinance sections 15.411 – 15.429 and New 524 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 13 of 25 

 

Bern’s Historic District Guidelines based on the following specific guidelines and 525 
findings of fact:   526 
Utilities 527 
2.3.1    528 
2.3.2   529 
Design Principles  530 
3.1.1    531 
3.1.2   532 
3.1.4    533 
Modifications 534 
3.2.1    535 
3.2.2   536 
Additions 537 
3.3.1    538 
3.3.2   539 
3.3.3   540 
Foundations 541 
4.1.1    542 
4.1.2    543 
4.1.3   544 
Walls, Trim and Ornamentation 545 
4.2.1    546 
4.2.4   547 
Windows, Doors and Openings 548 
4.3.1    549 
4.3.2   550 
Entrances 551 
4.4.1    552 
4.4.3   553 
Roofs 554 
4.5.6   555 
Masonry  556 
5.1.2   557 
5.1.4   558 
5.1.5   559 
Paint 560 
5.4.2    561 
5.4.3    562 
5.4.4   563 
Contemporary Materials 564 
5.5.2   565 
5.5.6   566 
Findings of Fact are: 567 
1. The project is located in the Tight Weave development pattern; 568 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 14 of 25 

 

2. The proposal is an addition and modification project; 569 
3. The proposed design, components, and materials meet the requirements of the 570 

Guidelines; 571 
4. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project 572 

and commented accordingly; 573 
5. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  574 
Approval includes the following condition:   575 
When appurtenances for the purposes of flood containment are added, the proposal will 576 
come back to the Commission. 577 
Commissioner Broadway seconded the motion.  578 
Motion passed:  Unanimously  579 
MOTION by Commissioner Stone to issue the CoA; Second by Commissioner  580 
Bisbee. 581 
Motion passed:  Unanimously 582 
Reseating Recused Commissioner 583 
MOTION by Commissioner Stone to reseat Vice Chair Eure; Second by Commissioner 584 
Bisbee.   585 
Motion passed unanimously.  Vice Chair Eure returned to the dais. 586 
 587 

F. 616 New St. – to include a new shed, extend the driveway, and new fencing, all in the 588 
Tertiary AVC. 589 
Conflict  590 
Commissioner Sheridan indicated she may have received a notification letter for this 591 
project and therefore requests to be recused from this case.   592 
MOTION: Commissioner Bisbee; second Commissioner Broadway.  593 
Motion passed unanimously.  Commissioner Sheridan stepped down. 594 
Staff Overview of the Application 595 
Staff Schelly provided a review of the application and internal review documents.  The 596 
existence of a staff recommendation was indicated.  597 
Applicant Comment 598 
Chair Cox asked the applicants if they had any additional comments.  Ms. McAllister had 599 
the following additional comments.  Staff left out that they will be doing wood-trimmed 600 
windows, and fiberglass asphalt shingles.  They will also reduce the size of the shed to 601 
remove the requirement for a building permit. 602 
Proponents’ and Opponents’ Comments 603 
Chair Cox asked if there is anyone who has received notice or has standing in this 604 
application, is a proponent of the application, and would like to present evidence.  Nobody 605 
Spoke.  606 
Chair Cox asked if there is anyone who has received notice or has standing in this 607 
application, is an opponent of the application, and would like to present evidence.  Nobody 608 
Spoke.   609 
Others with Evidence 610 
Chair Cox asked if there is anyone who has relevant evidence and standing and would like 611 
to speak.  None spoke.   612 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 15 of 25 

 

Chair Cox asked if there was anyone from the State, City, or any government body and 613 
would like to speak.  None spoke. 614 
Staff Recommendation 615 
Staff Schelly submitted the description of the project and the following Historic District 616 
Guidelines, Statements of Reason, and Recommendation as appropriate to this application: 617 
Fences and Garden Walls 618 
2.5.1    619 
2.5.3    620 
2.5.4   621 
Accessory Structures 622 
2.6.1   623 
2.6.3   624 
Parking 625 
2.7.1    626 
2.7.2    627 
2.7.4    628 
Design Principles 629 
3.1.1    630 
3.1.2   631 
Foundations 632 
4.1.3   633 
Walls, Trim and Ornamentation 634 
4.2.4   635 
4.2.5   636 
Windows, Doors and Openings 637 
4.3.2    638 
4.3.3   639 
Masonry 640 
5.1.5   641 
Metals 642 
5.3.4   643 
Paint 644 
5.4.2    645 
5.4.3    646 
5.4.4   647 
Contemporary Materials 648 
5.5.1    649 
5.5.2    650 
5.5.3    651 
5.5.5   652 
5.5.6   653 
Statements of Reason, based on the information contained in the application, in Staff’s 654 
judgment are: 655 
1. The structure is a contributing resource in the Tight Weave development pattern; 656 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 16 of 25 

 

2. The project is within the Tertiary AVC; 657 
3. The proposed design, components, and materials meet the requirements of the 658 

Guidelines; 659 
4. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project 660 

and commented accordingly; 661 
5. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  662 
Staff recommends the Commission approve this application to include a new shed, extend 663 
the driveway, and new fencing, all in the Tertiary AVC. 664 
Applicant’s Comments 665 
Chair Cox asked the applicants if they had any additional comments. 666 
Ms. McAllister indicated they had none at this time. 667 
Chair’s Clarification 668 
Chair Cox asked staff how to handle the change to the size of the shed.  Staff Schelly 669 
replied that it is approved as 10x12 or 10x10, or have staff review it as a condition of the 670 
approval.    671 
Commissioners’ Questions and Comments 672 
Chair Cox asked the Commissioners if they had any questions or comments. 673 
Commissioner Broadway asked about the material for the foundation for the shed.  Ms. 674 
McAllister answered that the foundation will have bricks similar to the house and she  675 
showed a photo to Commissioner Broadway. 676 
Chair Cox asked for any other questions from the Commissioners.  None 677 
MOTION by Commissioner Stone to find the application for 616 New St. Not 678 
Incongruous with New Bern’s Code of Ordinance sections 15.411 – 15.429 and New 679 
Bern’s Historic District Guidelines based on the following specific guidelines and 680 
findings of fact:   681 
Fences and Garden Walls 682 
2.5.1    683 
2.5.3    684 
2.5.4   685 
Accessory Structures 686 
2.6.1   687 
2.6.3   688 
Parking 689 
2.7.1    690 
2.7.2    691 
2.7.4    692 
Design Principles 693 
3.1.1    694 
3.1.2   695 
Foundations 696 
4.1.3   697 
Walls, Trim and Ornamentation 698 
4.2.4   699 
4.2.5   700 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 17 of 25 

 

Windows, Doors and Openings 701 
4.3.2    702 
4.3.3   703 
Masonry 704 
5.1.5   705 
Metals 706 
5.3.4   707 
Paint 708 
5.4.2    709 
5.4.3    710 
5.4.4   711 
Contemporary Materials 712 
5.5.1    713 
5.5.2    714 
5.5.3    715 
5.5.5   716 
5.5.6   717 
Findings of Fact are: 718 
1. The structure is a contributing resource in the Tight Weave development pattern; 719 
2. The project is within the Tertiary AVC; 720 
3. The proposed design, components, and materials meet the requirements of the 721 

Guidelines; 722 
4. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project 723 

and commented accordingly; 724 
5. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  725 
Approval includes the following condition:   726 
The reduced building come back to the administrator for review and to comply with any 727 
applicable building code requirements. 728 
Vice Chair Eure seconded the motion.  729 
Motion passed:  Unanimously  730 
MOTION by Vice Chair Eure to issue the CoA; Second by Commissioner Stone. 731 
Motion passed unanimously  732 
Reseating Recused Commissioner 733 
MOTION by Commissioner Stone to reseat Commissioner Sheridan; Second by  734 
Commissioner Broadway   735 
Motion passed unanimously.  Commissioner Sheridan returned to the dais. 736 
 737 

G. 316 Liberty St. – to include a new infill 1-story house and parking area. 738 
Staff Overview of the Application 739 
Staff Schelly provided a review of the application and internal review documents.  The 740 
existence of a staff recommendation was indicated.  741 
Conflict  742 
Chair Cox asked the Commission if anyone has a conflict of interest for this project.  There 743 
was no response.  744 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 18 of 25 

 

Completeness 745 
Chair Cox asked the Commission if anyone had any issues with the application.  There was 746 
no response.   747 
Applicant Comment 748 
Chair Cox asked Charles Francis, authorized representative for the applicant, if they had 749 
any additional comments.  Mr. Francis indicated they had none.  750 
Proponents’ and Opponents’ Comments 751 
Chair Cox asked if there is anyone who has received notice or has standing in this 752 
application, is a proponent of the application, and would like to present evidence.  Nobody 753 
Spoke.  754 
Chair Cox asked if there is anyone who has received notice or has standing in this 755 
application, is an opponent of the application, and would like to present evidence.  Nobody 756 
Spoke.   757 
Others with Evidence 758 
Chair Cox asked if there was anyone who has relevant evidence and standing and would 759 
like to speak.  None spoke.   760 
Chair Cox asked if there was anyone from the State, City, or any government body and 761 
would like to speak.  None spoke. 762 
Staff Recommendation 763 
Staff Schelly submitted the description of the project and the following Historic District 764 
Guidelines, Statements of Reason, and Recommendation as appropriate to this application: 765 
Development Pattern 766 
2.1.1   767 
2.1.2   768 
2.1.3    769 
Utilities 770 
2.3.1    771 
2.3.2   772 
Landscaping 773 
2.4.4   774 
Parking 775 
2.7.1    776 
2.7.2    777 
2.7.4    778 
2.7.5   779 
Design Principles  780 
3.1.1    781 
3.1.2    782 
3.1.5   783 
Infill Construction  784 
3.4.1    785 
3.4.2    786 
3.4.3    787 
3.4.4   788 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 19 of 25 

 

Foundations  789 
4.1.3    790 
Walls, Trim and Ornamentation  791 
4.2.4    792 
Windows, Doors and Openings 793 
4.3.3    794 
Entrances  795 
4.4.4   796 
Paint  797 
5.4.2    798 
5.4.3    799 
5.4.4    800 
Contemporary Materials 801 
5.5.1    802 
5.5.2    803 
5.5.3   804 
5.5.6   805 
Statements of Reason, based on the information contained in the application, in Staff’s 806 

judgment are: 807 
1. The project is located in the Tight Weave development pattern; 808 
2. The existing development pattern along Liberty St. has been severely weakened by 809 

vacant lots and nonconforming structures; 810 
3. The proposal is an infill project in a Modern Style to fit with a neighboring structure; 811 
4. The proposed design, components, and materials meet the requirements of the 812 

Guidelines; 813 
5. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project 814 

and commented accordingly; 815 
6. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  816 
Staff recommends the Commission approve this application to include a new infill 1-story 817 

house and parking area with the following condition: 818 
• Before pulling a building permit, the applicant shall provide verification of the zoning 819 

and subdivision requirements to the HPA.  If site changes are needed, the applicant 820 
shall submit revised drawings to the HPA for his approval or for review and approval 821 
by the HPC. 822 

Applicant’s Comments 823 
Chair Cox asked the applicants if they had any additional comments. 824 
Mr. Francis indicated they had the following additional comments: 825 
It was their understanding that the zoning requirements for setbacks established a setback 826 
zone for the front yard setback.  Staff Schelly clarified that the suggested condition is 827 
relative to the parking. 828 
Commissioners’ Questions and Comments 829 
Chair Cox asked the Commissioners if they had any questions or comments. 830 
Commissioner Sullivan asked why the applicants decided to use a Modern style instead 831 
any of the other styles for the proposal.  Mr. Francis replied that the design emulates the 832 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 20 of 25 

 

only other building on the block, the neighboring day care, which represents the current 833 
times and also that would be considered a work of architecture.  Commissioner Sullivan 834 
asked which Guidelines would back up the choice for a Modern style.  835 
Vice Chair Eure added that Guideline 3.4.1, building mass and open space, is satisfied; 836 
Guideline 3.4.2, predominant materials to emulate palette of material in the historic district, 837 
is satisfied; Guideline 3.4.3, modern materials are acceptable as a means of continuing 838 
architecture through time so this is a record of its time and place.  Commissioner Sheridan 839 
cited a paragraph in the infill construction section.  A discussion between Commissioners 840 
Sullivan and Sheridan clarified similar issues related to the style of the proposed infill 841 
construction. 842 
Ms. Katherine Adolf was sworn in. 843 
Ms. Adolf, owner of the property, spoke to say that the design is appropriate to the location 844 
and not likely to be appropriate in another location in the historic district. 845 
Chair Cox asked for any other comments from the Commissioners.  There were none.      846 
MOTION by Commissioner Bisbee to find the application for 316 Liberty St. to be Not 847 
Incongruous with New Bern’s Code of Ordinance sections 15.411 – 15.429 and New 848 
Bern’s Historic District Guidelines based on the following specific guidelines and findings 849 
of fact:   850 
Development Patterns 851 
2.1.1 852 
2.1.2 853 
2.1.3 854 
Utilities 855 
2.3.1    856 
2.3.2   857 
Landscaping 858 
2.4.4   859 
Parking 860 
2.7.1    861 
2.7.2    862 
2.7.4    863 
2.7.5   864 
Design Principles  865 
3.1.1    866 
3.1.2    867 
3.1.5   868 
Infill Construction  869 
3.4.1    870 
3.4.2    871 
3.4.3    872 
3.4.4   873 
Foundations  874 
4.1.3    875 
Walls, Trim and Ornamentation  876 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 21 of 25 

 

4.2.4    877 
Windows, Doors and Openings 878 
4.3.3    879 
Entrances  880 
4.4.4   881 
Paint  882 
5.4.2    883 
5.4.3    884 
5.4.4    885 
Contemporary Materials 886 
5.5.1    887 
5.5.2    888 
5.5.3   889 
5.5.6   890 
Findings of Fact are: 891 
1. The project is located in the Tight Weave development pattern; 892 
2. The existing development pattern along Liberty St. has been severely weakened by 893 

vacant lots and nonconforming structures; 894 
3. The proposal is an infill project in a Modern Style to fit with a neighboring structure; 895 
4. The proposed design, components, and materials meet the requirements of the 896 

Guidelines; 897 
5. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project 898 

and commented accordingly; 899 
6. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  900 
Approval includes the following condition:   901 
the zoning and subdivision requirements around the location of the parking lot be approved. 902 
Commissioner Broadway seconded the motion.  903 
Motion passed:  Commissioner Sullivan opposed. 904 
MOTION by Commissioner Sullivan to issue the CoA; Second by Commissioner 905 
Broadway. 906 
Motion passed: Unanimously 907 
 908 

H. 521 Hancock St. – to include roof revisions to an existing garage in the Tertiary AVC. 909 
Staff Overview of the Application 910 
Staff Schelly provided a review of the application and internal review documents.  The 911 
existence of a staff recommendation was indicated.  912 
Conflict  913 
Chair Cox asked the Commission if anyone has a conflict of interest for this project.  There 914 
was no response.  915 
Applicant Comment 916 
Chair Cox asked Ms. Sarah Afflerbach, authorized representative for the applicant, if they 917 
had any additional comments.  Ms. Afflerbach indicated they had none.  918 
Proponents’ and Opponents’ Comments, Others with Evidence 919 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 22 of 25 

 

Chair Cox noted there is nobody in the audience that would be proponents, opponents, 920 
others or government persons, so there are no further comments.  921 
Staff Recommendation 922 
Staff Schelly submitted the description of the project and the following Historic District 923 
Guidelines, Statements of Reason, and Recommendation as appropriate to this application: 924 
Accessory Structures 925 
2.6.2   926 
Design Principles 927 
3.1.1    928 
3.1.2   929 
Modifications 930 
3.2.1   931 
Walls, Trim and Ornamentation 932 
4.2.4   933 
4.2.5   934 
Windows, Doors and Openings 935 
4.3.2    936 
4.3.3   937 
Roofs 938 
4.5.2    939 
4.5.4   940 
Paint 941 
5.4.2    942 
5.4.3    943 
5.4.4   944 
Contemporary Materials 945 
5.5.1    946 
5.5.2    947 
5.5.3    948 
5.5.5   949 
Statements of Reason, based on the information contained in the application, in Staff’s 950 

judgment are: 951 
1. The structure is a contributing resource in the Tight Weave development pattern; 952 
2. The project is within the Tertiary AVC; 953 
3. The proposed design, components, and materials meet the requirements of the 954 

Guidelines; 955 
4. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project 956 

and commented accordingly; 957 
5. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  958 
Staff recommends the Commission approve this application to include roof revisions to 959 

an existing garage in the Tertiary AVC. 960 
Applicant’s Comments 961 
Chair Cox asked the applicants if they had any additional comments. 962 
 963 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 23 of 25 

 

Ms. Afflerbach indicated they had no additional comments. 964 
Commissioners’ Questions and Comments 965 
Chair Cox asked the Commissioners if they had any questions or comments.  Nobody 966 
responded. 967 
MOTION by Commissioner Sheridan to find the application for 521 Hancock St. to be 968 
Not Incongruous with New Bern’s Code of Ordinance sections 15.411 – 15.429 and 969 
New Bern’s Historic District Guidelines based on the following specific guidelines and 970 
findings of fact:   971 
Accessory Structures 972 
2.6.2   973 
Design Principles 974 
3.1.1    975 
3.1.2   976 
Modifications 977 
3.2.1   978 
Walls, Trim and Ornamentation 979 
4.2.4   980 
4.2.5   981 
Windows, Doors and Openings 982 
4.3.2    983 
4.3.3   984 
Roofs 985 
4.5.2    986 
4.5.4   987 
Paint 988 
5.4.2    989 
5.4.3    990 
5.4.4   991 
Contemporary Materials 992 
5.5.1    993 
5.5.2    994 
5.5.3    995 
5.5.5   996 
Findings of Fact are: 997 
1. The structure is a contributing resource in the Tight Weave development pattern; 998 
2. The project is within the Tertiary AVC; 999 
3. The proposed design, components, and materials meet the requirements of the 1000 

Guidelines; 1001 
4. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project 1002 

and commented accordingly; 1003 
5. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  1004 
Commissioner Bisbee seconded the motion.  1005 
Motion passed:  Unanimously  1006 
 1007 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 24 of 25 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Sheridan to issue the CoA; Second by Vice Chair Eure  1008 
Motion passed:  Unanimously 1009 
 1010 

4. OLD BUSINESS (non-hearing items tabled or continued from a previous meeting) 1011 
None 1012 

 1013 
5. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 1014 

None 1015 
 1016 
6. NEW BUSINESS:  1017 

A. Establish a deadline for Design Review Meeting application items. 1018 
Staff Schelly introduced the issue.   1019 
The deadline to submit information for the Design Review Meeting shall be noon on the 1020 
Friday before the Design Review Meeting the next Wednesday. 1021 
MOTION by Commissioner Sheridan to approve the calendar; second Commissioner 1022 
Bisbee.  1023 
Motion passed:  Unanimously  1024 
Chair Cox indicated there are several locations such as in the policies and on our website 1025 
that will need to be revised to reflect this change.  Vice Chair Eure pointed out that the 1026 
HPC has complete control over all those locations, so no additional approvals for the 1027 
changes are necessary. 1028 
 1029 

7. HPC ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 1030 
A. Report on CoAs Issued 11/10/2021 – 01/10/2022 1031 

Chair Cox introduced the list in the agenda (below).   1032 
MAJORS, including AMENDMENTS: 1033 
1.  111 Pollock St. – new porch addition 1034 
2.  300 Pollock St. (City Hall) – 3-story addition 1035 
3.  404 Avenue C – demolition of rear addition, garage, front porch, and side porch; 1036 

construction of 2-story addition, front and side porch replacements, new workshop 1037 
4.  407 Avenue D – new shed 1038 
5.  810 E. Front St. – infill house 1039 
MINORS: 1040 
1.  520 Johnson St. – two tree replacements 1041 
2.  221 Craven St. – utility meter and lines 1042 
3.  248-254 Craven St. – stair tower doors and windows 1043 
4.  306 Avenue B – tree replacement 1044 
5.  504 S. Front St. – shade sails, sod 1045 
6.  508 Middle St. - handrail 1046 
7.  520 Metcalf St. – front porch gutter 1047 
8.  804 Queen St. – access ramp in Primary AVC 1048 

B. Report on CoA Extensions Issued since the Prior Regular Meeting:  1049 
1. 720 E Front St – infill house 1050 

 1051 



DRAFT  DRAFT 

New Bern Historic Preservation Commission Minutes DRAFT:  January 19, 2022 
Page 25 of 25 

 

C. Other Items and Updates 1052 
Staff Schelly had nothing to add.  1053 

 1054 
8. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS: 1055 

None  1056 
 1057 

9. ADJOURN: 1058 
Motion to adjourn the meeting:  Commissioner Bisbee; Second by Commissioner 1059 
Sheridan. 1060 
Motion passed unanimously  1061 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:35 pm. 1062 
 1063 
 1064 
Minutes approved: April 19, 2023 1065 
 1066 
 1067 
____________________________ ______________________________________ 1068 
 1069 
Jim Bisbee, Chair Matthew Schelly, City Planner, HPC Secretary 1070 



Placeholder for Written Decisions for:

-  301 Hancock St. 
-  820 Broad St.









305 North Avenue – Staff photos June and September 2020 

June 2020 

 

 



 

 

 

 

  



September 2020 

 

 



 

 



305 North Avenue 

Built in 1940. This is a single-family stick built 1044 Sq-ft home on .29-acre lot. The 
structure is currently inhabitable because of contributing damages from 
Hurricane Florence in 2018. During Florence, about four feet of water inundated 
the house.  No repairs have been carried out on this structure since 2018. The 
whole structure is compromised from the foundation to the roof. In addition, 
mold has developed in the house. 

 

 



 

 



 



 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 











Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – January 18, 2023 

Page 1 of 5 

Applicant:       Paul & Karen Freeman 
Applicant Address: 214 Camp Queen Rd., Swansboro, NC  28584 
Project Address:  305 North Ave., New Bern 
 
Historic Property Name, Date:  House, ca. 1928 
Status:            Contributing:  X                   Non-contributing:    Vacant:    
NR Inventory Description (1988):  This one-story, gable-front bungalow appears to be of 
somewhat later construction than its neighbor to the northeast (303 North Ave.). The porch 
sheltering its three-bay facade has been screened, and the main block of the house is sheathed 
with asbestos siding. Windows are six over six sash. 
Sandbeck Description (1988): None   
 
305 North Ave. – to include demolishing the existing contributing house and replacing it with a 

new 2-story infill house. 
Staff submits the following Historic District Guidelines are appropriate to this application, 
which consists of two deliberations, demolition and new infill: 
DELIBERATION 1: DEMOLITION 
Demolition  
6.4.2  It is not appropriate to demolish a viable contributing structure in order to create an infill 

construction opportunity. 
6.4.3  The HPC reserves the right to postpone demolition until development and building permits 

are approved for redevelopment plans.  
6.4.4  Prepare drawings and photographically document the site prior to demolition. Include 

photographs of interiors, exteriors, architectural elements and context within the 
streetscape.  

6.4.5  Notify preservation organizations, and allow for the salvage of design components, 
architectural features and building materials for reuse. 

 
In addition, the Guidelines stipulate: “In rendering a decision on a demolition COA, the HPC 

should address the following [three] considerations:” 
Consideration 1: Address the historical, cultural and architectural significance of the structure.  

• Is it a contributing structure?  
o Staff:  Yes, as indicated in the Inventory in the National Register Registration Form 

for the Riverside Historic District. 
• Is it significant because of its historic use, an event, a person, a builder, or an architect?  

o Staff: No. None is indicated in the National Register Registration Form for the 
Riverside Historic District, nor is anything or anyone otherwise known to staff. 

• Is it the last or the oldest example of a certain building type?  
o Staff: This is not indicated in the National Register Registration Form for the 

Riverside Historic District, nor is this otherwise known to staff. 
Consideration 2: Address the integrity of the structure.  

• What are the conditions of foundations, floors, walls, windows, doors and roofs?  



Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – January 18, 2023 

Page 2 of 5 

o Staff: the applicant has provided substantial evidence that the conditions of these 
elements are beyond the state whereby repairs would be possible or reasonable. 

• Is it a hazard to public health, safety and welfare?  
o Staff: In 2012 the Chief Building Officer has issued an Order that the dwelling was 

“unfit for human habitation due to deterioration and defects, increasing the hazard 
of fire, accidents, or other calamities.” In addition, the applicant has stated that the 
structure is at least occasionally used by trespassers. 

Consideration 3: Address attempted preservation efforts.  
• Have options for rehabilitation been explored with preservation organizations? 

o Staff: no explorations of options for rehabilitation with preservation organizations  
are known to the staff.  

• Has the applicant been unsuccessful in seeking alternatives to demolition?  
o Staff: the applicant has not indicated such to the staff.  

• Have alternatives for structure relocation and sale of the property been pursued? 
o Staff: the applicant has not indicated such to the staff.  

Statements of Reason, based on the information contained in the application, in Staff’s judgment are: 
1. The project is a proposal to demolish a contributing resource. 
2. The applicant is proposing a new house for the property, however the design of which will 

need to be approved by the HPC. 
3. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project and 

commented accordingly. 
4. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  

MOTION FOR DELIBERATON 1 
Staff recommends the Commission approve this application to include demolition of a 
contributing structure, however the CoA should not be issued at this time and the demolition 
may not proceed until the design of the replacement structure is approved by the HPC and 
a CoA issued for the replacement.  Then, the CoA for the demolition can be approved by the 
HPC to be issued. 
 
 
DELIBERATION 2: NEW INFILL HOUSE 
Staff submits the following Historic District Guidelines are appropriate to this portion of the 
application, based on the plans and descriptions provided at the time of the preparation of 
these recommendations: 

Development Pattern 
2.1.1  Maintain the established development pattern for placement of infill construction. The 

relationship of a structure to the property boundaries should be similar to those up the 
street, down the street and in most cases, across the street. 

2.1.2  There are areas within the historic districts where the development pattern may have 
been weakened by vacant lots and nonconforming structures. In such areas, preference 
shall be given to contributing structures when defining the development pattern for 
infill construction. 



Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – January 18, 2023 

Page 3 of 5 

2.1.3  The footprint, scale and proportion of infill construction shall be in keeping with 
neighboring properties. In general, it is not appropriate to construct a three-story 
structure in an area that is dominated by one-story structures.  

Utilities 
2.3.1  Locate equipment in Secondary and Tertiary AVCs and screen items from public view 

with vegetation, fencing and similar site constructions.  It is recommended that utilities 
be consolidated in common locations. 

2.3.2  Paint equipment and exposed utilities to compliment mounting surfaces and reduce 
their visibility. 

Accessory Structures 
2.6.1  Locate accessory structures in Secondary or Tertiary AVCs, and behind primary 

structures when possible. Accessory structures are to be secondary to the primary 
structure in regard to mass, scale, form, and texture.  

2.6.2  It is appropriate for outbuildings, and similar structures with substantial foundations, 
to have a similar form and detailing as the primary structure. Reduce these elements in 
scale to compliment the outbuilding massing, and incorporate less ornate and simpler 
elements than found on the primary structure 

Parking 
2.7.1  Confine driveways on narrow lots to the Secondary AVC.  
2.7.2  Use driveways to access off street parking areas located in the Tertiary AVC. Areas for 

vehicular use shall not exceed more than 50% of the rear yard in the tight weave 
development pattern. 

Design Principles  
3.1.1  Consider the scale, mass and proportion inherent to the surrounding historic 

development pattern, and design modifications that incorporate these characteristics. 
Use basic shapes and forms that are common to the historic districts.  

3.1.2  Windows, doors and openings shall be compatible in proportion, shape, location, size, 
and quantity with those on surrounding historic structures. Avoid large expanses of 
blank walls. Establish bays, visually subdivide facades, and delineate building 
elevations to create form and rhythm.  

3.1.3  Discretely use rooftop appurtenances such as spires, cupolas, and towers to articulate 
rooflines. Compliment the scale, form and proportion of the structure, and use rooftop 
appurtenances to identify a building entry or similar massing focal point.  

3.1.4  Use details to articulate facades, and the openings within facades. Appropriately detail 
the base, body, and edges of facades to create texture and visual interest.  

3.1.5  Avoid creating a false sense of historical development. It is not appropriate to apply 
historic architectural styles to infill construction. Creative interpretation of traditional 
detailing and ornamentation is encouraged. 

Infill Construction  
3.4.1  Maintain the relationship between building mass and open space that exists on the block 

or streetscape.  
3.4.2  The predominant material of an infill building shall visually emulate the palette of 

materials traditionally found in the historic districts.  



Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – January 18, 2023 

Page 4 of 5 

3.4.3  Use of modern materials is acceptable as a means of continuing the evolution of 
architecture through time. However, the use of aluminum and vinyl siding, faux brick 
and stone, stamped concrete and similar imitation materials is not appropriate.  

3.4.4  Contemporary materials shall be appropriately proportioned, used in traditional ways 
and installed in a traditional manner. 

Foundations  
4.1.2  When infilling between brick piers, recess brick curtain walls 1 to 2 inches to visually 

delineate piers. 
4.1.3  Use traditional materials when constructing foundations. Concrete block should receive 

a veneer of stucco, brick, or other appropriate masonry material.  
4.1.4  Locate foundation features such as vents and access doors in areas that will not detract 

from the architectural character of the building. Coordinate with other architectural 
features when possible, such as aligning vents and access doors with windows above 
or centering them between piers. 

4.1.5  When elevating a structure in flood zones, limit elevation to the minimum height 
required by ordinance. When elevating a structure that is not in a flood zone, limit 
elevation to 2 feet above the current height.  

4.1.6  Minimize the visual impact of tall foundation walls by introducing a combination of 
landscaping, grading, and terraced retaining walls. 

Walls, Trim and Ornamentation  
4.2.4  Incorporate wood trims and articulate masonry appropriately for the application.  
4.2.5  Primary structures are generally more ornate and detailed. Accessory structures are 

generally subordinate to the primary structure and have minimal ornamentation, if any, 
and simplified details. 

Entrances  
4.4.4  Provide porches, entrance doors, railings, and other ornaments that proportionally 

relate to the building. Appropriate balustrades often convey a heavier visual 
appearance. Center balusters between the top and bottom rails and space them about 
three inches apart. 

Roofs  
4.5.4  Standing seam metal roofs shall have a pan width no greater than 24 inches. Pans shall 

be completely flat without corrugation. Provide double locked seams with flush ridge 
and hip flashings on contributing structures. 

4.5.6  Locate rooftop appurtenances such as ventilators, antennae, satellite dishes, mechanical 
equipment and similar items in a manner that is not visible from the public right of way. 

Masonry  
5.1.5  Provide a veneer of brick, stucco, or other appropriate material over concrete masonry 

units. Architectural concrete masonry units such as rusticated, split face or similar types 
may be substituted for stone masonry construction.  

Metals  
5.3.3  Use full weld iron and steel fabrication techniques. Welds shall be properly dressed, or 

ground smooth.  
5.3.4  Provide aluminum fabrications with welded joints or blind, mechanical connections 

having concealed fasteners. 



Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – January 18, 2023 

Page 5 of 5 

Paint  
5.4.2  Select paint and sealant coatings that are harmonious with adjoining work. In general, 

new material shall be a compatible formulation with the substrate of application.  
5.4.3  Apply primer coatings to front and back of wood surfaces prior to cutting and fitting. 

Prime end cuts before installation. Apply finish paint coatings to exposed primed 
surfaces.  

5.4.4  Consider using opaque stain in lieu of paint on flooring, fencing, and similar wood 
surfaces exposed to foot traffic or weather.  

5.4.6  It is not appropriate to apply paint, water repellant or sealant coatings to unpainted 
surfaces such as masonry, stone, copper, and bronze.  

 
Statements of Reason, based on the information contained in the application, in Staff’s judgment are: 

1. The project is located in the Tight Weave development pattern; 
2. The proposal is an infill project; 
3. The proposed design, components, and materials are not yet sufficiently indicated as to 

whether they will meet the requirements of the Guidelines; 
4. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project and 

commented accordingly; 
5. It is not yet clear whether the project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  

 
MOTION FOR DELIBERATON 2 
Staff recommends the Commission not approve the application for a new infill house at this 
time. 
 

































Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – February 15, 2023 

Page 1 of 2 

Applicant:       John O. Haroldson/Dean Quadir 
Applicant Address: 100 Middle St., New Bern 
Project Address:  100 Middle St., New Bern 
 
301 Hancock St. – to include reconstruction of the deck in the Tertiary AVC. 
 
Historic Property Name, Date:  N/A 
Status:   Contributing:            Non-contributing:  X     Vacant:    
NR Inventory Description (2003): N/A 
Sandbeck Description (1988): N/A 
 
Staff submits the following Historic District Guidelines are appropriate to this application: 

Landscaping 
2.4.1  Maintain mature canopy trees. Mature tree removal and its replacement species must 

be recommended by a certified arborist. Replace removed trees with a similar canopy 
species at or near the location of the removed tree. Locate canopy trees to define the 
street edge at maturity.  

2.4.3  Use plant materials that are indigenous to the historic districts. It is not appropriate to 
use contemporary edging materials such as landscaping timbers or plastic borders. 

Modifications  
3.2.1  Select materials that are consistent with the structure. Limit the palette to those 

materials that were available at the time a building was originally constructed. 
Foundations 
4.1.6  Minimize the visual impact of tall foundation walls by introducing a combination of 

landscaping, grading, and terraced retaining walls. 
Decks and Patios 
4.6.2  Locate decks in Secondary and Tertiary AVCs, and screen the underside with 

shrubbery, fencing, lattice, or masonry. 
Contemporary Materials 
5.5.1  In general, contemporary material shall match the dimension, shape and texture of their 

counterparts commonly found in the historic districts.  
5.5.2  Use contemporary and nontraditional materials in traditional ways. Apply materials in 

a traditional manner that conveys the same visual appearance as historic materials.  
5.5.3  Contemporary and nontraditional materials should convey appropriate historic material 

characteristics, and will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis for appearance, 
dimension, texture, color, sheen, visual weight and similar characteristics. 

 
Statements of Reason, based on the information contained in the application, in Staff’s judgment are: 

1. The project is located in the Waterfront Development pattern; 
2. The project is removal of the existing wood deck and replacement with a tile surface, metal 

railings, concrete steps, and a retaining wall of stacked decorative concrete masonry units; 



Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – February 15, 2023 

Page 2 of 2 

3. The proposed design, components, and materials do meet the requirements of the 
Guidelines. 

4. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project and 
commented accordingly; 

5. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines. 

MOTION 
Staff recommends the Commission approve this application to include reconstruction of the 
deck in the Tertiary AVC.   
 
 









710 New St. – photos from applicant, 2023-02-23 
 

       
 

       
 



       
 

       
 
    
 



       
 

       
 



  
 

       
 
 
 









710 New St. – photos by HPC Commissioner Thompson, April 2023 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

[original photo brightened by staff to view condi�on inside wall] 



 

[le� side of photo cropped slightly by staff to allow for enlargement of the photo] 

 



 

 



 



 

 



Front Room: 

 

Middle Room, rear outside corner: 

 



Closeup of beadboard wainsco�ng: 

 

Upper segment of stairway to second floor: 

 



“Historic” irises 

 

 



710 New St. Photos from HPC Commissioner Marc Wartner at site visit 3/21/23 

3/21/23 photos from Marc Wartner: 

 



 

 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



710 New St Photos from HPC Staff, site visit 2023-03-17 

 

 



 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 





 



 

 

 









 

 

 

 



 

 









 

 

 





Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – April 19, 2023 

Page 1 of 4 

Applicant:       Edward Munford, III 
Applicant Address: 2205 Foxhorn Rd., Trent Woods, NC 
Project Address:  710 New St., New Bern 
 
Historic Property Name, Date:  Hudson House, 1925 
Status:            Contributing:  X                   Non-contributing:    Vacant:    
NR Inventory Description (2003):  One story; two bays wide, three bays deep; twelve-over-
one sash; hip-roofed porch, metal supports on brick piers; plain-edge siding; metal-clad hip 
roof; interior chimney in east roof slope; rear wing. Beautiful irises in front garden. 
Sandbeck Description (1988): None   
 
710 New St. – to include demolishing the existing contributing house and replacing it with a new 

infill house. 
Staff submits the following Historic District Guidelines are appropriate to this application, 
which consists of two deliberations: demolition and new infill: 
DELIBERATION 1: DEMOLITION 
Demolition  
6.4.2  It is not appropriate to demolish a viable contributing structure in order to create an infill 

construction opportunity. 
6.4.3  The HPC reserves the right to postpone demolition until development and building permits 

are approved for redevelopment plans.  
6.4.4  Prepare drawings and photographically document the site prior to demolition. Include 

photographs of interiors, exteriors, architectural elements and context within the 
streetscape.  

6.4.5  Notify preservation organizations, and allow for the salvage of design components, 
architectural features and building materials for reuse. 

 
In addition, the Guidelines stipulate: “In rendering a decision on a demolition COA, the HPC 

should address the following [three] considerations:” 
Consideration 1: Address the historical, cultural and architectural significance of the structure.  

• Is it a contributing structure?  
o Staff:  Yes, as indicated in the Inventory in the National Register Registration Form for 

the New Bern Historic District. 
• Is it significant because of its historic use, an event, a person, a builder, or an architect?  

o Staff: Maybe. None is indicated in the National Register Registration Form for the New 
Bern Historic District, however, the SHPO file indicates a Joseph C. Jones owned the 
house with Dessie B. Jones from 1926 to 1947.  The 1926, 1937, and 1954 City 
Directories indicate Mr. Jones was a clerk for the Railway Mail Service in 1926 and 
1937.  By 1954 Jones was working for the US Post Office. In 1937 they had 4 children 
under 16 living with them at the time, plus Jos. C. Jones, Jr., a student apparently over 
16 years old also lived there.   
The Hudson family has a large number of military veterans from several branches.  
They can fill us in on that history, the ranks achieved, and any medal-worthy events. 

• Is it the last or the oldest example of a certain building type?  



Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – April 19, 2023 

Page 2 of 4 

o Staff: This is not indicated in the National Register Registration Form for the Riverside 
Historic District, nor is this otherwise known to staff. 

Consideration 2: Address the integrity of the structure.  
• What are the conditions of foundations, floors, walls, windows, doors and roofs?  

o Staff: the applicant has provided evidence that the conditions of a section of the 
foundation and the first floor are currently in an unstable condition.  Most of the HPC 
members have toured and inspected the property. 

• Is it a hazard to public health, safety, and welfare?  
o Staff: In 2021 City Building Inspector Ezel sent an email to the owners with a list of 

his findings from his minimum housing inspection. This email is provided in the 
applicant’s application.  Highlighted in this list are the following: 
 An issue with the brick chimney 
 An issue with the metal chimney 
 Multiple holes in the floor on the first floor 
 Multiple door frames that are not properly square 
 Extreme sagging in the house at the center of the house, seemingly caused by a 

lack of piers for floor system support or from a rotting floor system caused by 
water damage or termites 

Inspector Ezel determined that the condition of the “house does rise to a level of 
deterioration that does require further action to prevent further deterioration 
and/or reaching dilapidated status.” 

To date, Inspector Ezel has not updated this list. 
Consideration 3: Address attempted preservation efforts.  

• Have options for rehabilitation been explored with preservation organizations? 
o Staff: the staff has no knowledge of such effort.  

• Has the applicant been unsuccessful in seeking alternatives to demolition?  
o Staff: the staff has no knowledge of such effort.  

• Have alternatives for structure relocation and sale of the property been pursued? 
o Staff: the staff has no knowledge of such effort.  

The HPC Policies and Rules of Procedure indicate several other actions should be taken with regard 
to an application for the demolition of a contributing structure. 
A)  The following items must be verified by the HPC as part of the demolition review process. 

1. The structure qualifies as a contributing structure in a locally designated historic district and it 
is 50 years or older. 
2. SHPO has determined whether the structure has statewide significance. (This is in reference to 
160A-400.14(b)). 
3. SHPO has evaluated the interior and exterior of the structure and provided a written evaluation 
and opinion on the architectural, historical, and cultural significance of the structure. 

o Staff has indicated the structure is a contributing structure, as stated in the National 
Register inventory.   

o Staff has requested the information from the SHPO and that work is currently pending. 



Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – April 19, 2023 

Page 3 of 4 

B)  Each commissioner shall visit the site of the structure proposed for demolition. Access to the 
interior shall be granted by the property owner if the property is safe to enter … 

o Staff: HPC members did visit the site on two separate occasions and access around the 
structure and to the interior was granted by the property owner. 

C)  There is no requirement for the property owner to provide a structural engineering report, but if 
one is provided it should contain as much detail as possible, including: 
• a breakdown of the structural integrity of design components, such as the roof, walls, 

floors, windows, doors, and foundation. 
• a detailed description and justification for each structural component on whether the 

component is 50% or more structurally unsound. 
Any report provided by a structural engineer must be reviewed by the Chief Building Inspector. 

o Staff: No report has been submitted. 
D) At least one design review must be held for a CoA application that involves demolition of a 

contributing structure. The purpose is to provide advice on historic guidelines that relate to 
demolition. 

o Staff: This application has been discussed at the March 1 and April 5, 2023 Design 
Review Meetings. 

E) A vote to approve or deny demolition must include findings of fact and references to specific 
historic guidelines based on evidence presented at the hearing. 

F) The HPC shall work with the property owner to identify architectural features and materials that 
can be salvaged and reused. The HPC may require removal of salvageable building parts as part of 
the conditions for issuing a COA. 

o Staff can assist the HPC and the applicant to identify architectural features and 
materials that can be salvaged and reused, and possibly a location for the salvaged 
features and materials. 

G) A structure must be documented for a historic record before it is demolished. The HPC shall 
determine the form and nature of documentation. 

o Staff:  If demolition is approved, staff recommends this requirement become a 
condition on the CoA, perhaps as a pre-condition to the redevelopment approval so that 
documentation is incentivized to occur while the redevelopment is being designed, to 
ensure the documentation is provided, and to avoid delay in the demolition. 

Statements of Reason for Deliberation 1, based on the information contained in the application, in 
Staff’s judgment are: 

1. The project is a proposal to demolish a contributing resource. 
2. The information from the SHPO has not yet been provided. 
3. It is unclear to the staff at this time whether repairing the structure is reasonable and more 

information from the applicants may be needed for the HPC to determine this. 
4. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project and 

commented accordingly. 

MOTION FOR DELIBERATON 1 
Staff recommends the Commission move to continue this application to the next reasonable 
Regular Meeting to allow time to receive and review the information requested from the 



Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – April 19, 2023 

Page 4 of 4 

State Historic Preservation Office and other additional relevant information from the 
applicants. 
If the HPC chooses to approve this application to include demolition of a contributing 
structure, the CoA should not be issued at this time and the demolition may not proceed until 
the design of the replacement structure is approved by the HPC and a CoA issued for the 
replacement.  Then, the CoA for the demolition can be approved by the HPC to be issued. 
 
 
DELIBERATION 2: NEW INFILL HOUSE 
Staff submits that in the absence of a proposal for the redevelopment of the property, the 
HPC cannot discuss this portion of the application. 
MOTION FOR DELIBERATON 2 
Staff recommends the Commission not approve the application for a new infill house at this 
time, but continue this portion of the application to the next reasonable Regular Meeting to 
allow time for the applicant to prepare a design and proceed through Design Review Meeting 
discussions with the HPC. 
 



CoA App 071515.doc 

FEE SCHEDULE (office use only) 
[ ] $22 Standard Application (minor) 
[ ] $107 Standard Application (major)  

Application for a Certificate of Appropriateness 
(For Alterations to Properties in Locally Designated Historic Districts) 

For assistance see “CoA Instructions”, as well as “Historic District Guidelines”, available online at: 
http://www.newbern-nc.org/departments/development/historic-preservation/historic-preservation-guidlines/ 

Type of Project: Exterior Alteration Addition  Infill Site Work   Other 

I. Applicant/Owner Information:
Property Address (Include year built, if known): 

Property Owner Name(s): Owner Mailing Address: Phone #’s: Email: 

Applicant Name (if different): Applicant Mailing Address: Phone #’s: Email: 

II. Project Information:  (See “CoA Instructions” & “ Historic Guidelines” for help in completing this section)
1. Provide a detailed description of work to be conducted on site:  (Attach additional sheets if needed)

 Continued on additional sheet or attached brochure  
2. Reference the specific Guideline(s) in the “Historic District Guidelines” which you believe apply to this
project:  (page and guideline number):

 Continued on additional sheet or attached brochure  
3. Provide a detailed description of materials to be used (copies of brochures, texture, etc.):
Reference the specific Guidelines in the Historic District Guidelines for the proposed material(s). 

 Continued on additional sheet or attached brochure  

 HPC Administrator 
HPCadmin@newbern-nc.org 

Work:(252)639-7583 
Fax: (252)636-2146 

GO Architectural Design, PLLC 
Sarah Afflerbach, AIA

1202A Pollock Street 
New Bern, NC  28560 252-633-0322 sarah@goarchdesign.com

719 E. Front Street

X

X

Shannon & Corinne Corr 205 Pollock Street 
New Bern, NC  28560

252-514-7217 thecorrs@bellsouth.net

Construct a new two story single family home and detached garage.   
Landscaping plan will be submitted separately.

X

2.1.1, 2.1.2, 2.1.3, 4.1.1, 4.1.2, 4.1.3, 4.1.4, 4.2.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.4, 4.3.1-4.3.7, 4.4.1-4.4.5, 
4.5.1-4.5.6, 4.6.1-4.6.3

Hardie Board siding (smooth faced lap siding and shakes), Azek trim and railing and painted ornamental railing,  
brick masonry piers,vinyl windows, asphalt shingles and concrete walk and driveway and wood privacy fence. 







CEILING MOUNT

WALL SCONCE

RECEPTACLE

RECEPTACLE
WATER PROOF

RECEPTACLE
GFCI

SWITCH

3 WAY SWITCH

FAN / LIGHT

SECURITY LIGHT

FAN / LIGHT

6" RECESSED CAN

FLUORESCENT 

CABLE

TELEPHONE

CEILING PENDANTP

UNDER-COUNTER

RECEPTACLE
FLOOR

FL

3

DIRECTIONAL PIN LIGHT

INDIRECT TRAY LIGHTING

GARAGE DOOR OPENER
W/ LIGHT

WP

GF

ELECTRICAL SYMBOLSLIMITED LICENSE FOR USE TO CONSTRUCT ONE HOME

Please read carefully.  This license contains terms by which you are bound if you use this plan to construct a home.  If
you do not agree to the terms of this license, you may return the plan for a full refund.  By using the plan to construct a

home, you are agreeing to and accepting the terms of the license.

You are granted the right to construct one, and only one, home based on the plan.  This right extends to the original purchaser
of then plan only and is not transferable.  You may not sell or otherwise transfer any right to copy or make use of the plan to

any other party, or allow any other party to use or copy the plan.

For reproducible plans, the license includes the right to copy and modify the plan for use in the construction of the single home
permitted to be constructed pursuant to the license

This plan is protected under federal copyright laws.  All rights under those laws are reserved BY GO Architectural Design, PLLC.
Use of the plan in a manner inconsistent with this license constitutes infringement of the copyright and a violation of U.S.

copyright law.

DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES

GO ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN MAKES NO WARRANTIES REGARDING THE PLAN.  TO THE MAXIMUM
EXTENT ALLOWED BY LAW, GO ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  ANY MODIFICATION OF THE PLAN
VOIDS ANY AND ALL WARRANTIES EXPRESS OR IMPLIED.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
                  

GO ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR
INCIDENTAL DAMAGES ARISING FROM USE OF THE PLAN.  TO THE EXTENT ALLOWABLE BY LAW,
ANY LIABILITY OF SULLIVAN DESIGN COMPANY WILL BE LIMITED TO THE PURCHASE PRICE OF THE

PLAN.

The purchaser of this plan is responsible for compliance with all local building codes and for ensuring that the plan is correctly
adapted to accommodate local site conditions.  The purchaser should consult with a local architect or engineer regarding these

matters.

Before construction begins, the purchaser should thoroughly review this plan with the contractor, verify all dimensions, and
report to GO Architectural Design any errors, omissions or questions for clarification.

Before construction begins, the purchaser or contractor should verify all structural elements for the plan and site with a local
engineer.

The exact size, reinforcement and depth of all concrete footings must be determined by local soil conditions and acceptable
practices of construction.  The bottom of all footings should extend below frostline.  Before construction begins, the purchaser
or contractor should verify the design of the footings and foundation with a local engineer.

The purchaser assumes all risks associated with adapting the plan to local sites affected by regional variations in climate, local
site conditions, design needs, and building codes.  GO Architectural Design  has no responsibility for adapting the plan to local
site conditions, design changes, construction means or methods, costs, workmanship, quality of materials or equipment utilized

in the construction.

Plans:  ©2023 by GO Architectural Design, PLLC.  These plans are protected under federal copyright laws.  The original purchaser
of these plans is authorized to build one, and only one home, as shown in the plans.  Reproduction by any means, modification,
or use of these plans to construct more than one home unless otherwise specifically authorized is prohibited.

G-101
TITLE SHEET

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CORR CUSTOM HOME
719 E. FRONT STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.11.2023
719 E. FRONT STREET

CORR CUSTOM HOME
SHEET SCHEDULE

G-101 TITLE SHEET
C-101 SITE PLAN
C-102 SITE POSITION
A-101 FIRST FLOOR PLAN
A-102 SECOND FLOOR PLAN
A-103 ROOF PLAN
A-201 ELEVATIONS
A-202 ELEVATIONS
A-203 ELEVATIONS

GROSS SQUARE FOOTAGE

HEATED / COOLED
FIRST FLOOR PLAN 1,253 SF
SECOND FLOOR PLAN     1,295 SF
TOTAL            2,548 SF

NON HEATED
1ST FL FRONT COVERED PORCH   247 SF
1ST FL BACK COVERED PORCH   116 SF
1ST FL BACK SCREENED PORCH   295 SF
GARAGE     525 SF
2ND FL FRONT COVERED PORCH   247 SF
2ND FL BACK SCREENED PORCH   271  SF
TOTAL            1,701 SF

1
A-204

KEYS & SYMBOLS

DRAWING NUMBER

SHEET NUMBER

ROOM NAME

CEILING HEIGHT AND
SQUARE FOOTAGE

FLOOR FINISH

BEDROOM
10' CLG    WOOD

1
A-101

FIRST FLOOR PLAN
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

DRAWING NUMBER

SHEET NUMBER

0'-0"
GRADE ELEVATION HEIGHT

DOOR & WINDOW SIZE KEY
         =  2'-6" WIDE (ASSUME STANDARD DOOR

 HEIGHT OF 6'-8" UNLESS NOTED)

2060  =  2'-0" WIDE  X  6'-0" HIGH

2668

0 8' 16'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 3/32"=1'-0"

8' 24'



PHOTO1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CORR CUSTOM HOME
719 E. FRONT STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.11.2023
719 E. FRONT STREET



2868

2868

26
74

3080
3080

30
80

30
80

30
80

2680

30
60

3080

3080

20
48

26
5

2

3080

30
8

0

2680

20
5

2

9070

20
52

26
52

3080

20
20

20
20

26602660

2660 2660

4

3080

20
52

20
48

2020 202 0 2020

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

2

3

30
80

30
8

0

30
80

30
8

0

30
80

30
80

14
80

5

6

7

8

9

10

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10
12

13

26
80

2345

6

7

8

9

10

12

13

3080 3080

C-101
SITE PLAN

1
C-101

SITE PLAN
Scale: 3/32" = 1'-0"

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CORR CUSTOM HOME
719 E. FRONT STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.11.2023
719 E. FRONT STREET

NO
RT

H

0 8' 16'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 3/32"=1'-0"

8' 24'

16
'-8

"

15'-0"

30
'-0

"

30'-0" 3'-0"52'-3"

36
'-9

"

POOL

10'-0"

20
'-0

"

GARAGE

HOUSE

22
'-0

"

6' PRIVACY FENCE

CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

GARAGE



2868
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

2 3 4 5 6

3080

3080
3080

3080

3080

308 0

2

3

4

5

6

9 107 8

2868

2674

3080
3080

3080
3080

3080

2680

3060

3080

3080

204
8

2652

3080

3080

2680

2052

9070

2052
2652

3080

2020
2020

2660 266 0

26602660

4

3080

2052
2048

202020202020

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

2

3

3080
308

0

3080
308

0

3080

3080

1480

5

6

7

8

9

10

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10
12

13

2680

2 3 4 5

6

7

8

9

10

12

13

308 03080

C-102
SITE POSITION

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CORR CUSTOM HOME
719 E. FRONT STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.11.2023
719 E. FRONT STREET

1
C-102

SITE POSITION
Scale: 1/16" = 1'-0"

NORTH

0 8' 16' 32'16'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/16"=1'-0"

15
'-0

"9'-
0"

PO
RC

H

HO
US

E

19
'-6

"
HO

US
E11

'-6
"

PO
RC

H

1'-
6" 5'-

0"

7'-
0"

30
'-0

"

7'-
0"

HO
US

E

2'-
0"

PO
RC

H

+6'-0"

16
'-9

"
HO

US
E8'-

4"
PO

RC
H

+6'-3"

17
'-3

"
HO

US
E9'-

0"
PO

RC
H

+6'-3"

17
'-3

"
HO

US
E9'-

0"
PO

RC
H

16
'-8

"
HO

US
E

8'-
8"

PO
RC

H

11
'-6

"
HO

US
EPORCH 11

'-6
"

15
'-8

"
HO

US
E

PORCH 6'-
8" 15

'-8
"

HO
US

E

PORCH 7'-
0" 16

'-8
"

HO
US

E

+7'-3"

5'-
0" 7'-
0"

16
'-8

"

15'-0"

24
'-0

"
HO

US
E

PO
RC

H



2674

30
80

30
80

30803080
3080

26
80

3060

3080

30
80

2048

2652

30
80

3080

26
80

2052

90
70

2052 2652

30
80

2020 2020

26
60

26
60

26
60

26
60

4

3080

2052 2048

2020
2020

2020

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2 3

30803080

30803080

3080

1480

5 6 7 8 9 10

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
1213

2680

2

3

4

5

6789101213

30
80

30
80

A-101
FIRST FLOOR PLAN

1
A-101

FIRST FLOOR PLAN
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 0 2' 4' 8'4'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CORR CUSTOM HOME
719 E. FRONT STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.11.2023
719 E. FRONT STREET

NORTH

GENERAL NOTES

1. DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF STUD
2. ALL EXTERIOR WALLS - 2X6 WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
3. ALL INTERIOR WALLS - 2X4 WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
4. 1

2" PAINTED GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL WALLS AND CEILING
5. BATHROOMS TO  RECEIVE 5 8" MOISTURE RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL SURFACES
6. SEAL ALL JOINTS AND OPENINGS WITH CONTINUOUS SILICONE CAULKING
7. INTERIOR DOORS TO BE PAINTED 8' PONDEROSA PINE P82-1 3 8" RAISED PANEL OR SIMILAR
8. EXTERIOR COLUMNS TO BE 1' COMPOSITE SQUARE
9. PORCH DECKING TO BE 5 4" DECK BOARDS
10. RAILING TO BE AZECK PICKETS AND RAILING ON ALL ELEVATIONS.
11. SHOWER - MOSAIC TILE FLOOR, TILE WALLS, FRAME-LESS GLASS ENCLOSURE
12. CONFIRM ALL COLOR AND MATERIAL CHOICES WITH OWNER BEFORE ORDERING

COVERED
PORCH

9'-0" CLG    TREX

BEDROOM
9'-0" CLG    WOOD

SCREENED
PORCH

9'-0" CLG    TREX

COVERED
PORCH

9'-0" CLG    TREX

BA
TH

RO
OM

9'-
0" 

CL
G 

  T
ILE

CL
OS

ET
9'-

0" 
CL

G  
  W

OO
D

POWDER
TILE

SITTING AREA
9'-0" CLG    WOOD

BEDROOM
9'-0" CLG    WOOD

BATHROOM
9'-0" CLG   TILE

MUDROOM
9'-0" CLG   WOOD

ELEV

UP

HVAC

14
'-0

"

8'-
9"

4'-
111 2"

5'-1"11'-8"

14
'-6

"

19'-8"

10'-0"

16
'-1

0"

16
'-1

1 2"

3'-
0"

13'-4"

26'-0"

13'-4"

4'-
5"

13'-6"7'-0"11'-8"

HVAC
9'-0" CLG
WOOD

18
'-4

"

8'-
5"

4'-
1"

9'-
7"

7'-41 2"

8'-
5"

6'-0"

4'-
9"

33'-8" 11'-1"

92'-9"

46
'-5

1 2"

18'-0"19'-8"10'-0" 7'-1"

11'-11"

21
'-9

1 2"
18

'-4
"

11
'-8

"
5'-

0"

5'-0"

19
'-3

"

27
'-2

1 2"

1
A-201

2
A-201

1
A-202

1
A-203

DETACHED
GARAGE

9'-0" CLG    CONC

HVAC

9'-0"

12
'-9

"

5'-
9"

UP

UP

9'-2"26'-11"

2'-
0"

37'-8"

PATIO
BRICK

9'-2"

5'-
11

"
4'-

0"
9'-

4"

6'-
1"

6'-
6"

6'-6"

7'-
6"

4'-
2"

4'-2"

27
'-7

"

4'-0"

18
'-9

1 2"2'-
8"

4'-7"

3'-
5"

6'-
4"

8'-10"

2'-
1"

UP UP
UP

7'-1"



26
50

12
08

0

2666

26
66

26
66

3080

30
80

W
D

3080

28
80

26482648 264826482048

90
80

26
60

2650

2020 2020

26
60

26
48

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

12

26
60

13

1421 20 19 18 17 16 15

2680

A-102
SECOND FLOOR PLAN

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CORR CUSTOM HOME
719 E. FRONT STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.11.2023
719 E. FRONT STREET

1
A-102

SECOND FLOOR PLAN
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 0 2' 4' 8'4'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

NORTH

GENERAL NOTES

1. DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF STUD
2. ALL EXTERIOR WALLS - 2X6 WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
3. ALL INTERIOR WALLS - 2X4 WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
4. 1

2" PAINTED GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL WALLS AND CEILING
5. BATHROOMS TO  RECEIVE 5 8" MOISTURE RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL SURFACES
6. SEAL ALL JOINTS AND OPENINGS WITH CONTINUOUS SILICONE CAULKING
7. INTERIOR DOORS TO BE PAINTED 8' PONDEROSA PINE P82-1 3 8" RAISED PANEL OR SIMILAR
8. EXTERIOR COLUMNS TO BE 1' COMPOSITE SQUARE
9. PORCH DECKING TO BE 5 4" DECK BOARDS
10. RAILING TO BE AZECK PICKETS AND RAILING ON ALL ELEVATIONS.
11. SHOWER - MOSAIC TILE FLOOR, TILE WALLS, FRAME-LESS GLASS ENCLOSURE
12. CONFIRM ALL COLOR AND MATERIAL CHOICES WITH OWNER BEFORE ORDERING

BEDROOM
10'-0" CLG    WOOD

LIVING ROOM
10'-0" CLG    WOOD

KITCHEN
10'-0" CLG    WOOD

DINING
10'-0" CLG    WOOD

DN

CL
OS

ET
10

'-0
" C

LG
    

TI
LE

BATHROOM
10'-0" CLG    TILE

ELEV

COVERED
PORCH

10'-0" CLG    TREX

SCREENED PORCH
10'-0" CLG    TREX

LAUNDRY
10'-0" CLG   TILE

PANTRY
10'-0" CLG   TILE

5'-0"

27
'-2

1 2"

7'-9"

14
'-0

"

12
'-6

"
18

'-6
"

7'-
6"

POWDER

18
'-6

"
4'-

5"

46
'-5

1 2"

12'-0"

14'-4"

8'-0"18'-4"

24'-8"

1
A-201

2
A-201

1
A-202

1
A-203

33'-8" 11'-1"

46
'-5

1 2"

27'-7"10'-1" 7'-1"

37'-8"

27
'-7

"

4'-0"

18
'-9

1 2"

9'-
8"

4'-
0"8'-1"

9'-
9"

6'-7" 7'-6"

SLOPE
SLOPE

SLOPE
SLOPE

RIDGE

WALL BELOW

RIDGE

5'-
0"

6'-
1"

6'-
5"

3'-
8"

4'-0"

8'-
0"

5'-8"2'-1"2'-9"

12
'-8

"
5'-

2"
13

'-2
"

4'-4"8'-7"

6'-0"

STAIRS BELOW

STAIRS BELOW



A-103
ROOF PLAN

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CORR CUSTOM HOME
719 E. FRONT STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.11.2023
719 E. FRONT STREET

1
A-103

ROOF PLAN
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 0 2' 4' 8'4'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

NORTH

GENERAL NOTES

1. DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF STUD
2. ALL EXTERIOR WALLS - 2X6 WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
3. ALL INTERIOR WALLS - 2X4 WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
4. 1

2" PAINTED GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL WALLS AND CEILING
5. BATHROOMS TO  RECEIVE 5 8" MOISTURE RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL SURFACES
6. SEAL ALL JOINTS AND OPENINGS WITH CONTINUOUS SILICONE CAULKING
7. INTERIOR DOORS TO BE PAINTED 8' PONDEROSA PINE P82-1 3 8" RAISED PANEL OR SIMILAR
8. EXTERIOR COLUMNS TO BE 1' COMPOSITE SQUARE
9. PORCH DECKING TO BE 5 4" DECK BOARDS
10. RAILING TO BE AZECK PICKETS AND RAILING ON ALL ELEVATIONS.
11. SHOWER - MOSAIC TILE FLOOR, TILE WALLS, FRAME-LESS GLASS ENCLOSURE
12. CONFIRM ALL COLOR AND MATERIAL CHOICES WITH OWNER BEFORE ORDERING

1
A-201

2
A-201

1
A-202

1
A-203

49
'-2

1 2"

30'-5"

8:12 SLOPE

RIDGE

WALL BELOW

8:12 SLOPE

2:12 SLOPE

RIDGE

2:12 SLOPE

12:12 SLOPE

RIDGE

12:12 SLOPE

8:12 SLOPE

RI
DG

E

8:12 SLOPE

3:12 SLOPE

3:12 SLOPE
3:12 SLOPE

29'-9" 6'-4" 47'-6"

27
'-3

"

15'-7"

22
'-1

"

26
'-7

1 2"

11
'-0

1 2"

37
'-2

"

8'-31 2"

VALLEY

VAL
LEY

HIP
HIP

WALL BELOW

1'-
4"

1'-
4"

7'-0"

8:12 SLOPE 8:12 SLOPE

12:12
SLOPE

RIDGE

12:12
SLOPE

VALLEY

VALLEY



12
8

12
12

4'-0"
GARAGE FLOOR

4'-
0"

HARDIE - LAP SIDING
HARDIE - CORNER

BOARD

AZEK RAILING AND PICKETS

-2'-0"
SIDEWALK

-6''-0"
MEAN SEA LEVEL

2'-
0"

4'-
0"

-2'-0"
SIDEWALK

-6''-0"
MEAN SEA LEVEL

2'-
0"

4'-
0"

OPEN BRICK
WEAVE

OPEN BRICK
WEAVE

AZEK
RAILING AND
PICKETS

8'-
0"

14'-0"

6'-
0"

2'-6"

2'-
0"

6'-
0"

2'-6"

2'-
0"

6'-
0"

2'-6"

2'-
0"

6'-
0"

2'-6"

2'-
0"

5'-
0"

2'-6"
3'-

0"

8'-
0"

3'-0"

6'-
0"

2'-6"

2'-
0"

6'-
0"

2'-6"

2'-
0"

6'-
6"

2'-6"

1'-
6"

2'-0"

6'-
01

2"
2'-

0" 2'-0" 2'-0"

8'-
0"

8'-0"

6'-
0"

2'-6"

2'-
0"

6'-
0"

2'-6"

2'-
0"

2'-6"2'-6"

GENERAL NOTES

1. DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF STUD
2. ALL EXTERIOR WALLS - 2X6 WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
3. ALL INTERIOR WALLS - 2X4 WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
4. 1

2" PAINTED GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL WALLS AND CEILING
5. BATHROOMS TO  RECEIVE 5 8" MOISTURE RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL SURFACES
6. SEAL ALL JOINTS AND OPENINGS WITH CONTINUOUS SILICONE CAULKING
7. INTERIOR DOORS TO BE PAINTED 8' PONDEROSA PINE P82-1 3 8" RAISED PANEL OR SIMILAR
8. EXTERIOR COLUMNS TO BE 1' COMPOSITE SQUARE
9. PORCH DECKING TO BE 5 4" DECK BOARDS
10. RAILING TO BE AZECK PICKETS AND RAILING ON ALL ELEVATIONS.
11. SHOWER - MOSAIC TILE FLOOR, TILE WALLS, FRAME-LESS GLASS ENCLOSURE
12. CONFIRM ALL COLOR AND MATERIAL CHOICES WITH OWNER BEFORE ORDERING

OPERABLE
SHUTTERS
- TYP

A-201
ELEVATIONS

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CORR CUSTOM HOME
719 E. FRONT STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.11.2023
719 E. FRONT STREET

0 2' 4' 8'4'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

1
A-201

ELEVATION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0'-0"
GRADE

37
'-8

"

6'-0"
FIRST FLOOR

15'-0"
FIRST FLOOR CEILING

17'-0"
SECOND FLOOR

27'-0"
SECOND CEILING

6'-
0"

9'-
0"

2'-
0"

10
'-0

"

DIMENSIONAL SHINGLE ROOF

COMPOSITE COLUMNS

BRICK

HARDIE - LAP SIDING
HARDIE - CORNER

BOARD

2
A-201

ELEVATION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0'-0"
GRADE

38
'-7

"

6'-0"
FIRST FLOOR

15'-0"
FIRST FLOOR CEILING

17'-0"
SECOND FLOOR

27'-0"
SECOND CEILING

2'-
0"

9'-
0"

2'-
0"

10
'-0

"

HARDIE BOARD -
BOARD AND

BATTEN SIDING

DIMENSIONAL SHINGLE ROOF

SCREEN SYSTEM

COMPOSITE COLUMN

BRICK

12
12

HAND SEAMED
METAL ROOF

HAND SEAMED
METAL ROOF

HAND SEAMED
METAL ROOF

HAND SEAMED
METAL ROOF

HAND SEAMED
METAL ROOF

12
12



12
3

4'-0"
GARAGE FLOOR

4'-
0"

HARDIE - LAP SIDING
HARDIE - CORNER

BOARD

-2'-0"
SIDEWALK

-6''-0"
MEAN SEA LEVEL

2'-
0"

4'-
0"

OPEN BRICK
WEAVE

AZEK
RAILING AND
PICKETS

8'-
0"

3'-0" 2'-0"

6'-
01

2"
2'-

0" 2'-0" 2'-0"

8'-
0" 6'-

0"

2'-6"

2'-
0"

6'-
0"

2'-6"

2'-
0"

3'-0"3'-0"

GENERAL NOTES

1. DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF STUD
2. ALL EXTERIOR WALLS - 2X6 WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
3. ALL INTERIOR WALLS - 2X4 WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
4. 1

2" PAINTED GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL WALLS AND CEILING
5. BATHROOMS TO  RECEIVE 5 8" MOISTURE RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL SURFACES
6. SEAL ALL JOINTS AND OPENINGS WITH CONTINUOUS SILICONE CAULKING
7. INTERIOR DOORS TO BE PAINTED 8' PONDEROSA PINE P82-1 3 8" RAISED PANEL OR SIMILAR
8. EXTERIOR COLUMNS TO BE 1' COMPOSITE SQUARE
9. PORCH DECKING TO BE 5 4" DECK BOARDS
10. RAILING TO BE AZECK PICKETS AND RAILING ON ALL ELEVATIONS.
11. SHOWER - MOSAIC TILE FLOOR, TILE WALLS, FRAME-LESS GLASS ENCLOSURE
12. CONFIRM ALL COLOR AND MATERIAL CHOICES WITH OWNER BEFORE ORDERING

4'-
8"

2'-0"

3'-
4"

HVAC
SURROUND

8'-
0"

3'-0"

2'-
0"

CONNECTOR
ROOF

8'-
0"

3'-0"

4'-
0"

OPERABLE
SHUTTERS
- TYP

A-201B
ELEVATIONS

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CORR CUSTOM HOME
719 E. FRONT STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.11.2023
719 E. FRONT STREET

0 2' 4' 8'4'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

2
A-201B

ELEVATION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0'-0"
GRADE

38
'-7

"

6'-0"
FIRST FLOOR

15'-0"
FIRST FLOOR CEILING

17'-0"
SECOND FLOOR

27'-0"
SECOND CEILING

2'-
0"

9'-
0"

2'-
0"

10
'-0

"

DIMENSIONAL SHINGLE ROOF

SCREEN SYSTEM

COMPOSITE COLUMN

BRICK

12
12

HARDIE BOARD -
BOARD AND

BATTEN SIDING

HAND SEAMED
METAL ROOF

HAND SEAMED
METAL ROOF

3'-0"3'-0"3'-0"



A-202
ELEVATIONS

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CORR CUSTOM HOME
719 E. FRONT STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.11.2023
719 E. FRONT STREET

0 2' 4' 8'4'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

1
A-202

ELEVATION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0'-0"
GRADE

38
'-7

"

6'-0"
FIRST FLOOR

15'-0"
FIRST FLOOR CEILING

17'-0"
SECOND FLOOR

27'-0"
SECOND CEILING

6'-
0"

9'-
0"

2'-
0"

10
'-0

"

ARCHITECTURAL SHINGLE ROOF

COMPOSITE COLUMNS

BRICK

AZEK RAIL SYSTEM

HARDIE - LAP SIDING
HARDIE - CORNER
BOARD

-2'-0"
SIDEWALK

-6''-0"
MEAN SEA LEVEL

2'-
0"

4'-
0"

OPEN BRICK WEAVE

12
3

HAND SEAMED
METAL ROOF

ARCHITECTURAL
SHINGLE ROOF

3 1 2" WOOD SLATS - HVAC SURROUND

9'-
0"

GENERAL NOTES

1. DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF STUD
2. ALL EXTERIOR WALLS - 2X6 WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
3. ALL INTERIOR WALLS - 2X4 WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
4. 1

2" PAINTED GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL WALLS AND CEILING
5. BATHROOMS TO  RECEIVE 5 8" MOISTURE RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL SURFACES
6. SEAL ALL JOINTS AND OPENINGS WITH CONTINUOUS SILICONE CAULKING
7. INTERIOR DOORS TO BE PAINTED 8' PONDEROSA PINE P82-1 3 8" RAISED PANEL OR SIMILAR
8. EXTERIOR COLUMNS TO BE 1' COMPOSITE SQUARE
9. PORCH DECKING TO BE 5 4" DECK BOARDS
10. RAILING TO BE AZECK PICKETS AND RAILING ON ALL ELEVATIONS.
11. SHOWER - MOSAIC TILE FLOOR, TILE WALLS, FRAME-LESS GLASS ENCLOSURE
12. CONFIRM ALL COLOR AND MATERIAL CHOICES WITH OWNER BEFORE ORDERING

OPERABLE
SHUTTERS
- TYP

4'-
8"

2'-6" 2'-6"

3'-
4"

4'-
8"

2'-6" 2'-6"

3'-
4"

5'-
0"

2'-6" 2'-6"

3'-
0"

4'-
8"

2'-0"

3'-
4"

5'-
0"

2'-0"

3'-
0"

5'-
0"

2'-0"

3'-
0"

5'-
0"

2'-0"

3'-
0"

5'-
0"

2'-0"

3'-
0"

OPTION A

22
'-1

1"



12
8

A-203
ELEVATIONS

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CORR CUSTOM HOME
719 E. FRONT STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.11.2023
719 E. FRONT STREET

0 2' 4' 8'4'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

1
A-203

ELEVATION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0'-0"
GRADE

6'-0"
FIRST FLOOR

15'-0"
FIRST FLOOR CEILING

17'-0"
SECOND FLOOR

2'-
0"

9'-
0"

2'-
0"

ARCHITECTURAL SHINGLE ROOF

SCREEN SYSTEM
COMPOSITE COLUMNS

BRICK2'-0"
GARAGE FLOOR

4'-
0"

-2'-0"
SIDEWALK

-6''-0"
MEAN SEA LEVEL

2'-
0"

4'-
0"

OPEN BRICK WEAVEOPEN BRICK WEAVE

12
3

13
'-0

"
HVAC

SCREEN

6'-
6"

2'-6"

1'-
6"

6'-
6"

2'-6"

1'-
6"

2'-
0" 2'-0"

6'-
0"

2'-0"

2'-
0" 2'-0"

6'-
0"

2'-0"

CONNECTOR
ROOF

GENERAL NOTES

1. DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF STUD
2. ALL EXTERIOR WALLS - 2X6 WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
3. ALL INTERIOR WALLS - 2X4 WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
4. 1

2" PAINTED GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL WALLS AND CEILING
5. BATHROOMS TO  RECEIVE 5 8" MOISTURE RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL SURFACES
6. SEAL ALL JOINTS AND OPENINGS WITH CONTINUOUS SILICONE CAULKING
7. INTERIOR DOORS TO BE PAINTED 8' PONDEROSA PINE P82-1 3 8" RAISED PANEL OR SIMILAR
8. EXTERIOR COLUMNS TO BE 1' COMPOSITE SQUARE
9. PORCH DECKING TO BE 5 4" DECK BOARDS
10. RAILING TO BE AZECK PICKETS AND RAILING ON ALL ELEVATIONS.
11. SHOWER - MOSAIC TILE FLOOR, TILE WALLS, FRAME-LESS GLASS ENCLOSURE
12. CONFIRM ALL COLOR AND MATERIAL CHOICES WITH OWNER BEFORE ORDERING

OPERABLE
SHUTTERS
- TYP

12
3

HARDIE BOARD AND
BATTEN SIDING

ARCHITECTURAL SHINGLE ROOF



2868

A-204
GARAGE PLANS AND ELEVATIONS

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CORR CUSTOM HOME
719 E. FRONT STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.11.2023
719 E. FRONT STREET

1
A-204

GARAGE FLOOR PLAN
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0 2' 4' 8'4'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

30'-0"

30
'-0

"

3
A-204

5
A-204

2
A-204

4
A-204

2
A-204

GARAGE ELEVATION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0'-0"
GRADE

2'-
0"

2'-0"
GARAGE FLOOR

-2'-0"
SIDEWALK

-6''-0"
MEAN SEA LEVEL

2'-
0"

4'-
0"

16
'-1

1"

3
A-204

GARAGE ELEVATION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0'-0"
GRADE

2'-
0"

2'-0"
GARAGE FLOOR

-2'-0"
SIDEWALK

-6''-0"
MEAN SEA LEVEL

2'-
0"

4'-
0"

16
'-1

1"

BRICK

HARDIE - LAP
SIDING

HARDIE - CORNER
BOARD

METAL GARAGE DOOR

HARDIE - LAP
SIDING

HARDIE - CORNER
BOARD

ARCHITECTURAL SHINGLE ROOF

12
4

4
A-204

GARAGE ELEVATION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0'-0"
GRADE

2'-
0"

2'-0"
GARAGE FLOOR

-2'-0"
SIDEWALK

-6''-0"
MEAN SEA LEVEL

2'-
0"

4'-
0"

16
'-1

1"

5
A-204

GARAGE ELEVATION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0'-0"
GRADE

2'-
0"

2'-0"
GARAGE FLOOR

-2'-0"
SIDEWALK

-6''-0"
MEAN SEA LEVEL

2'-
0"

4'-
0"

16
'-1

1"

BRICK

HARDIE - LAP
SIDING

HARDIE - CORNER
BOARD

METAL GARAGE DOOR

HARDIE - LAP
SIDING

HARDIE - CORNER
BOARD

ARCHITECTURAL SHINGLE ROOF

12
4

FIBERGLASS DOOR

GENERAL NOTES

1. DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF STUD
2. ALL EXTERIOR WALLS - 2X6 WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
3. ALL INTERIOR WALLS - 2X4 WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
4. 1

2" PAINTED GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL WALLS AND CEILING
5. BATHROOMS TO  RECEIVE 5 8" MOISTURE RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL SURFACES
6. SEAL ALL JOINTS AND OPENINGS WITH CONTINUOUS SILICONE CAULKING
7. INTERIOR DOORS TO BE PAINTED 8' PONDEROSA PINE P82-1 3 8" RAISED PANEL OR SIMILAR
8. EXTERIOR COLUMNS TO BE 1' COMPOSITE SQUARE
9. PORCH DECKING TO BE 5 4" DECK BOARDS
10. RAILING TO BE AZECK PICKETS AND RAILING ON ALL ELEVATIONS.
11. SHOWER - MOSAIC TILE FLOOR, TILE WALLS, FRAME-LESS GLASS ENCLOSURE
12. CONFIRM ALL COLOR AND MATERIAL CHOICES WITH OWNER BEFORE ORDERING





Certificate of Appropriateness Findings & Recommendations 
HPC Meeting April 19, 2023 

 
Page 1 of 4 

Applicant:       Shannon & Corinne Corr/GO Architectural Design, PLLC 
Applicant Address: 205 Pollock St., New Bern, NC  28560 
Project Address:  719 E. Front St., New Bern, NC  28560 
Historic Property Name:  N/A 
Status:            Contributing:                  Non-contributing:   Vacant Lot: X 
 
719 E. Front St. – to include construction of a new 2-story infill house and detached garages. 
 
Staff submits the following Historic District Guidelines as appropriate to this application: 

Development Pattern 
2.1.1  Maintain the established development pattern for placement of infill construction. The 

relationship of a structure to the property boundaries should be similar to those up the 
street, down the street and in most cases, across the street.  

2.1.2  There are areas within the historic districts where the development pattern may have 
been weakened by vacant lots and nonconforming structures. In such areas, preference 
shall be given to contributing structures when defining the development pattern for 
infill construction. 

2.1.3 The footprint, scale and proportion of infill construction shall be in keeping with 
neighboring properties. In general, it is not appropriate to construct a three-story 
structure in an area that is dominated by one-story structures. 

 

Utilities 
2.3.1  Locate equipment in Secondary and Tertiary AVCs and screen items from public view 

with vegetation, fencing and similar site constructions. 
2.3.2  Paint equipment and exposed utilities to compliment mounting surfaces and reduce 

their visibility.  
2.3.6  Install light fixtures in locations that complement the character of historic structures 

and sites. It is not appropriate to replace original light fixtures. Lamping shall emit a 
white light. Illumination shall provide visibility and security without overemphasizing 
a structure, parking area or site. 

 

Landscaping 
2.4.2  Maintain a planting strip between the curb and sidewalk in the tight weave development 

pattern. The predominant plantings in this area shall be grass and trees. Walkways 
connecting the curb and sidewalk shall not exceed a width of six feet. Align walkways 
with building entrances. 

2.4.3  Use plant materials that are indigenous to the historic districts. It is not appropriate to 
use contemporary edging materials such as landscaping timbers or plastic borders. 

2.4.4  Incorporate trees, shrubbery and other landscape features around the periphery of a lot 
and within parking areas. 

2.4.5  Locate accessory structures and similar site improvements to avoid removing healthy, 
mature trees of desirable species. 

 

Fences and Garden Walls 
2.5.1  Fences and walls based on historic designs are encouraged. Incorporate materials and 

configurations that relate to the architecture of the principal structure on the site. Use 
fences and walls to demarcate property lines and screen private areas. 



Certificate of Appropriateness Findings & Recommendations 
HPC Meeting April 19, 2023 

 
Page 2 of 4 

2.5.2  In a Primary AVC, erect low fences and walls with a vertical dimension of four feet or 
less. Space rectangular wood planks about one inch apart.  Space square wood and iron 
pickets about three inches apart. Orient pickets vertically. 

2.5.3  In Secondary and Tertiary AVCs, erect tall fences and walls with a vertical dimension 
of six feet or less. Tall fences that abut a structure shall terminate at an architectural 
feature. Transition low fencing to taller fencing at an architectural feature. 

2.5.5  Consider hedgerows as alternatives to fences and walls. 
Accessory Structures 
2.6.1  Locate accessory structures in Secondary or Tertiary AVCs, and behind primary 

structures when possible. Accessory structures are to be secondary to the primary 
structure in regard to mass, scale, form and texture. 

2.6.2  It is appropriate for outbuildings, and similar structures with substantial foundations, 
to have a similar form and detailing as the primary structure. Reduce these elements in 
scale to compliment the outbuilding massing, and incorporate less ornate and simpler 
elements than found on the primary structure. 

Parking 
2.7.2  Use driveways to access off street parking areas located in the Tertiary AVC. Areas for 

vehicular use shall not exceed more than 50% of the rear yard in the tight weave 
development pattern. 

2.7.5  Screen parking lots with fences, walls and hedgerows to create edges that separate 
vehicular space from pedestrian space. Parking screens should have a vertical 
dimension of four feet or less. 

Design Principles 
3.1.1  Consider the scale, mass and proportion inherent to the surrounding historic 

development pattern, and design modifications that incorporate these characteristics. 
Use basic shapes and forms that are common to the historic districts. 

3.1.2  Windows, doors and openings shall be compatible in proportion, shape, location, size 
and quantity with those on surrounding historic structures. Avoid large expanses of 
blank walls. Establish bays, visually subdivide facades and delineate building 
elevations to create form and rhythm. 

3.1.4  Use details to articulate facades, and the openings within facades. Appropriately detail 
the base, body and edges of facades to create texture and visual interest. 

Infill Construction 
3.4.1  Maintain the relationship between building mass and open space that exists on the block 

or streetscape. 
3.4.2  The predominant material of an infill building shall visually emulate the palette of 

materials traditionally found in the historic districts. 
3.4.3  Use of modern materials is acceptable as a means of continuing the evolution of 

architecture through time. However, the use of aluminum and vinyl siding, faux brick 
and stone, stamped concrete and similar imitation materials is not appropriate. 

3.4.4  Contemporary materials shall be appropriately proportioned, used in traditional ways 
and installed in a traditional manner. 

Foundations 
4.1.2  When infilling between brick piers, recess brick curtain walls 1 to 2 inches to visually 

delineate piers. 



Certificate of Appropriateness Findings & Recommendations 
HPC Meeting April 19, 2023 

 
Page 3 of 4 

4.1.3  Use traditional materials when constructing foundations. Concrete block should receive 
a veneer of stucco, brick or other appropriate masonry material. 

4.1.4  Locate foundation features such as vents and access doors in areas that will not detract 
from the architectural character of the building. Coordinate with other architectural 
features when possible, such as aligning vents and access doors with windows above 
or centering them between piers. 

4.1.5  When elevating a structure in flood zones, limit elevation to the minimum height 
required by ordinance. When elevating a structure that is not in a flood zone, limit 
elevation to 2 feet above the current height.  

4.1.6  Minimize the visual impact of tall foundation walls by introducing a combination of 
landscaping, grading, and terraced retaining walls. 

Walls, Trim, and Ornamentation 
4.2.4  Incorporate wood trims and articulate masonry appropriately for the application. 

Primary structures are generally more ornate and detailed. Accessory structures are 
generally subordinate to the primary structure and have minimal ornamentation, if any, 
and simplified details. 

4.2.5  Primary structures are generally more ornate and detailed. Accessory structures are 
generally subordinate to the primary structure and have minimal ornamentation, if any, 
and simplified details. 

 

Windows, Doors, and Openings 
4.3.2  Add window and door openings in Secondary or Tertiary AVCs in locations that do 

not diminish the original design. In general, openings shall have a vertical orientation 
or be square. 

4.3.3  Glazing should have true divided light muntins, or three-dimensional grilles affixed to 
both the interior and exterior of the glass. Provide shadow bars between insulated glass 
panes. 

4.3.4  Relate shutters and blinds proportionately to window openings. Whether operable or 
fixed, shutters or blinds shall have operable hardware including hinge and holdback 
hardware. 

 

Entrances 
4.4.4  Provide entrance doors, porch railings and other ornaments that proportionally relate 

to the building. Appropriate porch balustrades often convey a heavier visual 
appearance.  Center balusters between the top and bottom rails and space them about 
three inches apart. 

4.4.5  Enclose and screen porches in Secondary and Tertiary AVCs in a manner that preserves 
historic features. Walls and screens should not obscure columns and balustrades. 

 

Roofs 
4.5.4  Standing seam metal roofs shall have a pan width no greater than 24 inches. Pans shall 

be completely flat without corrugation. Provide double locked seams with flush ridge 
and hip flashings on contributing structures. 

4.5.6  Locate rooftop appurtenances such as ventilators, antennae, satellite dishes, mechanical 
equipment and similar items in a manner that is not visible from the public right-of-
way. 

 

Masonry 



Certificate of Appropriateness Findings & Recommendations 
HPC Meeting April 19, 2023 

 
Page 4 of 4 

5.1.5  Provide a veneer of brick, stucco, or other appropriate material over concrete masonry 
units. Architectural concrete masonry units such as rusticated, split face or similar types 
may be substituted for stone masonry construction. 

Paint 
5.4.2  Select paint and sealant coatings that are harmonious with adjoining work. In general, 

new material shall be a compatible formulation with the substrate of application. 
5.4.3  Apply primer coatings to front and back wood surfaces prior to cutting and fitting. 

Prime end cuts before installation. Apply finish paint coatings to exposed primed 
surfaces. 

5.4.4  Consider using opaque stain in lieu of paint on porch flooring, deck flooring and similar 
wood surfaces exposed to foot traffic or weather. 

5.4.5  Waterfront wood constructions such as docks and piers may be allowed to naturally 
weather in lieu of receiving paint coatings. 

 

Contemporary Materials 
5.5.1  In general, contemporary material shall match the dimension, shape and texture of their 

counterparts commonly found in the historic districts. 
5.5.2  Use contemporary and nontraditional materials in traditional ways. Apply materials in 

a traditional manner that conveys the same visual appearance as historic materials. 
5.5.3  Contemporary and nontraditional materials should convey appropriate historic material 

characteristics, and will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis for appearance, 
dimension, texture, color, sheen, visual weight and similar characteristics. 

5.5.5  Cement board with a smooth finish is acceptable as the predominant siding material for 
infill construction and non-historic accessory structures. 

5.5.6  Contemporary materials such as synthetic slate and fiberglass asphalt shingles are 
acceptable for sloped roofing regardless of building age. Select fiberglass asphalt 
shingles from a darker color palette. Contemporary membrane and roll roofing are 
acceptable for low-sloped roofs with a 1 inch per foot pitch or less regardless of 
building age. 

 
 

Statements of Reason, based on the information contained in the application, in Staff’s judgment are: 
1. The project is new infill construction within the Tight Weave development pattern; 
2. The proposed design, components, and materials meet the requirements of the Guidelines; 
3. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project and 

commented accordingly; 
4. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  

 

MOTION 
Staff recommends the Commission approve this application to include construction of a new 
2-story infill house and detached garages, with the following condition: 

• Construction or installation of fencing, exterior lighting, and landscaping may not 
begin until the applicant provides to the HPA the drawings, details, and description of 
such work and the HPA has reviewed the information and approves, by issuing a new 
or amended CoA for the installation of said fencing, lighting, and landscaping. 

















Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – April 19, 2023 

Page 1 of 2 

Applicant:       Chris Hoveland 
Owner’s Address: 413-B Broad St., New Bern, NC  
Project Address:  411 Broad St., New Bern, NC  
 
Historic Property Name:  Stores, ca. 1925 
Status:            Contributing:    X                 Non-contributing:         Vacant:    
NR Inventory Description (1988):  411-413 Broad St., One story; brick; twin stores with 
diamond-pattern designs above storefronts, stepped parapets; flat roof. 
Sandbeck Description (1988): nothing relevant to the rear wall or patio space. 
 
411 Broad St. - to include a new pavilion addition in the Tertiary AVC. 
 
Staff submits the following Historic District Guidelines as appropriate to this application: 

Accessory Structures 
2.6.1  Locate accessory structures in Secondary or Tertiary AVCs, and behind primary 

structures when possible. Accessory structures are to be secondary to the primary 
structure in regard to mass, scale, form, and texture. 

2.6.3  Accessory structures such as sheds, gazebos, pergolas, arbors, trellises, and similar 
types of site improvements with minimal foundations are to serve as focal points within 
rear yard landscapes. These forms and detailing have little relationship to historic fabric 
and can be easily removed without creating permanent damage. 

Design Principles 
3.1.1  Consider the scale, mass and proportion inherent to the surrounding historic 

development pattern, and design modifications that incorporate these characteristics. 
Use basic shapes and forms that are common to the historic districts.  

3.1.2  Windows, doors and openings shall be compatible in proportion, shape, location, size 
and quantity with those on surrounding historic structures. Avoid large expanses of 
blank walls. Establish bays, visually subdivide facades and delineate building 
elevations to create form and rhythm. 

Modifications 
3.2.1  Select materials that are consistent with the structure. Limit the palette to those 

materials that were available at the time a building was originally constructed. 
Additions 
3.3.1  Locate additions in a Secondary or Tertiary AVC to minimize the impact on primary, 

character defining elevations. Limit the footprint of additions to maintain private open 
spaces.  

3.3.2  Use roof forms and pitches that are similar to those found on the primary structure. 
Delineate the addition from the plane of the primary structure by creating slight offsets 
and corners. 

Roofs 
4.5.4  Standing seam metal roofs shall have a pan width no greater than 24 inches. Pans shall 

be completely flat without corrugation. Provide double locked seams with flush ridge 
and hip flashings on contributing structures. 

Paint 



Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – April 19, 2023 

Page 2 of 2 

5.4.2  Select paint and sealant coatings that are harmonious with adjoining work. In general, 
new material shall be a compatible formulation with the substrate of application.  

5.4.3  Apply primer coatings to front and back of wood surfaces prior to cutting and fitting. 
Prime end cuts before installation. Apply finish paint coatings to exposed primed 
surfaces.  

5.4.4  Consider using opaque stain in lieu of paint on flooring, fencing, and similar wood 
surfaces exposed to foot traffic or weather 

Contemporary Materials 
5.5.1  In general, contemporary material shall match the dimension, shape and texture of their 

counterparts commonly found in the historic districts.  
5.5.2  Use contemporary and nontraditional materials in traditional ways. Apply materials in 

a traditional manner that conveys the same visual appearance as historic materials.  
5.5.3  Contemporary and nontraditional materials should convey appropriate historic material 

characteristics, and will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis for appearance, 
dimension, texture, color, sheen, visual weight and similar characteristics.  

5.5.6  Contemporary materials such as synthetic slate and fiberglass asphalt shingles are 
acceptable for sloped roofing regardless of building age. Select fiberglass asphalt 
shingles from a darker color palette. Contemporary membrane and roll roofing are 
acceptable for low-sloped roofs with a 1 inch per foot pitch or less regardless of 
building age. 

 
Statements of Reason, based on the information contained in the application, in Staff’s judgment are: 

1. The structure is a contributing resource in the Dense Fabric development pattern; 
2. The project is an addition to a contributing structure within the Tertiary AVC; 
3. The proposed design, components, and materials meet the requirements of the 

Guidelines; 
4. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project 

and commented accordingly; 
5. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  

 

MOTION 
Staff recommends the Commission approve this application to include a new pavilion 
addition in the Tertiary AVC. 



CoA App 071515.doc 

FEE SCHEDULE (office use only) 
[ ] $22 Standard Application (minor) 
[ ] $107 Standard Application (major)  

Application for a Certificate of Appropriateness 
(For Alterations to Properties in Locally Designated Historic Districts) 

For assistance see “CoA Instructions”, as well as “Historic District Guidelines”, available online at: 
http://www.newbern-nc.org/departments/development/historic-preservation/historic-preservation-guidlines/ 

Type of Project: Exterior Alteration Addition  Infill Site Work   Other 

I. Applicant/Owner Information:
Property Address (Include year built, if known): 

Property Owner Name(s): Owner Mailing Address: Phone #’s: Email: 

Applicant Name (if different): Applicant Mailing Address: Phone #’s: Email: 

II. Project Information:  (See “CoA Instructions” & “ Historic Guidelines” for help in completing this section)
1. Provide a detailed description of work to be conducted on site:  (Attach additional sheets if needed)

 Continued on additional sheet or attached brochure  
2. Reference the specific Guideline(s) in the “Historic District Guidelines” which you believe apply to this
project:  (page and guideline number):

 Continued on additional sheet or attached brochure  
3. Provide a detailed description of materials to be used (copies of brochures, texture, etc.):
Reference the specific Guidelines in the Historic District Guidelines for the proposed material(s). 

 Continued on additional sheet or attached brochure  

 HPC Administrator 
HPCadmin@newbern-nc.org 

Work:(252)639-7583 
Fax: (252)636-2146 

X



501�Metcalf�Street�(1875)

Mark�&�Patricia�Conard 501�Metcalf�Street
New�Bern,�NC��28560

770-714-6003 mconard@comcast.net

Remove�existing�rear�screened�porch�and�replace�with�a�larger�screened�porch�and�connecting�wood�deck.�Take�up�
existing�glazed�brick�pavers�and�reset�on�a�stable�bed�so�the�glazed�pavers�are�level.�Add�new�brick�paver�walkway�
connecting�the�glazed�paver�walkway�with�the�side�covered�entry.�Remove�metal�hand�railing�and�front�steps�replacing�
wider�brick�steps�so�new�hand�railing�and�pickets�line�up�with�the�existing�front�porch�columns.�Railing�and�pickets�to�
match�existing.�Landscaping�plans.�See�plans�and�elevations.

Modifications�3.2.1-5��Additions�3.3.1-3��Foundations�4.1-6��Walls�&�Trim��4.2.1-5�Roofs�4.5.1,.4,��Decks�&�Patios�4.6.1-4,�
Landscaping�2.4.3-4

Painted�preservative�treated�wood�posts�at�screened�porch,�screening,�preservative�treated�wood�decking,�brick�masonry�
piers,�hand�seamed�metal�roofing,�Belgard�permeable�paver.

X

X

GO Architectural Design, PLLC 
Sarah Afflerbach, AIA

1202A Pollock Street 
New Bern, NC  28560 252-633-0322 sarah@goarchdesign.com







CEILING MOUNT

WALL SCONCE

RECEPTACLE

RECEPTACLE
WATER PROOF

RECEPTACLE
GFCI

SWITCH

3 WAY SWITCH

FAN / LIGHT

SECURITY LIGHT

FAN / LIGHT

6" RECESSED CAN

FLUORESCENT 

CABLE

TELEPHONE

CEILING PENDANTP

UNDER-COUNTER

RECEPTACLE
FLOOR

FL

3

DIRECTIONAL PIN LIGHT

INDIRECT TRAY LIGHTING

GARAGE DOOR OPENER
W/ LIGHT

WP

GF

ELECTRICAL SYMBOLSLIMITED LICENSE FOR USE TO CONSTRUCT ONE HOME

Please read carefully.  This license contains terms by which you are bound if you use this plan to construct a home.  If
you do not agree to the terms of this license, you may return the plan for a full refund.  By using the plan to construct a

home, you are agreeing to and accepting the terms of the license.

You are granted the right to construct one, and only one, home based on the plan.  This right extends to the original purchaser
of then plan only and is not transferable.  You may not sell or otherwise transfer any right to copy or make use of the plan to

any other party, or allow any other party to use or copy the plan.

For reproducible plans, the license includes the right to copy and modify the plan for use in the construction of the single home
permitted to be constructed pursuant to the license

This plan is protected under federal copyright laws.  All rights under those laws are reserved BY GO Architectural Design, PLLC.
Use of the plan in a manner inconsistent with this license constitutes infringement of the copyright and a violation of U.S.

copyright law.

DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES

GO ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN MAKES NO WARRANTIES REGARDING THE PLAN.  TO THE MAXIMUM
EXTENT ALLOWED BY LAW, GO ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  ANY MODIFICATION OF THE PLAN
VOIDS ANY AND ALL WARRANTIES EXPRESS OR IMPLIED.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
                  

GO ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR
INCIDENTAL DAMAGES ARISING FROM USE OF THE PLAN.  TO THE EXTENT ALLOWABLE BY LAW,
ANY LIABILITY OF SULLIVAN DESIGN COMPANY WILL BE LIMITED TO THE PURCHASE PRICE OF THE

PLAN.

The purchaser of this plan is responsible for compliance with all local building codes and for ensuring that the plan is correctly
adapted to accommodate local site conditions.  The purchaser should consult with a local architect or engineer regarding these

matters.

Before construction begins, the purchaser should thoroughly review this plan with the contractor, verify all dimensions, and
report to GO Architectural Design any errors, omissions or questions for clarification.

Before construction begins, the purchaser or contractor should verify all structural elements for the plan and site with a local
engineer.

The exact size, reinforcement and depth of all concrete footings must be determined by local soil conditions and acceptable
practices of construction.  The bottom of all footings should extend below frostline.  Before construction begins, the purchaser
or contractor should verify the design of the footings and foundation with a local engineer.

The purchaser assumes all risks associated with adapting the plan to local sites affected by regional variations in climate, local
site conditions, design needs, and building codes.  GO Architectural Design  has no responsibility for adapting the plan to local
site conditions, design changes, construction means or methods, costs, workmanship, quality of materials or equipment utilized

in the construction.

Plans:  ©2023 by GO Architectural Design, PLLC.  These plans are protected under federal copyright laws.  The original purchaser
of these plans is authorized to build one, and only one home, as shown in the plans.  Reproduction by any means, modification,
or use of these plans to construct more than one home unless otherwise specifically authorized is prohibited.

G-101
TITLE SHEET

CONARD RENOVATIONS
SHEET SCHEDULE

G-101 TITLE SHEET
PHOTOS
C-101 SITE PLAN
A-101 DEMO & NEW PLANS
A-201 DEMO & NEW ELEVATIONS

GROSS SQUARE FOOTAGE
1

A-204

KEYS & SYMBOLS

DRAWING NUMBER

SHEET NUMBER

ROOM NAME

CEILING HEIGHT AND
SQUARE FOOTAGE

FLOOR FINISH

BEDROOM
10' CLG    WOOD

1
A-101

FIRST FLOOR PLAN
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

DRAWING NUMBER

SHEET NUMBER

0'-0"
GRADE ELEVATION HEIGHT

DOOR & WINDOW SIZE KEY
         =  2'-6" WIDE (ASSUME STANDARD DOOR

 HEIGHT OF 6'-8" UNLESS NOTED)

2060  =  2'-0" WIDE  X  6'-0" HIGH

2668

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CONARD RENOVATIONS
501 METCALF STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.13.2023
501 METCALF STREET



PHOTO1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CONARD RENOVATIONS
501 METCALF STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.13.2023
501 METCALF STREET



C-101
SITE PLAN

1
C-101

SITE PLAN
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

NORTH
0 4' 8' 16'8'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CONARD RENOVATIONS
501 METCALF STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.13.2023
501 METCALF STREET

PROPOSED NEW BRICK PAVER

1
A-101

NEW BRICK
PAVER WALKWAY

4'-0"

6'-0"REBUILD BRICK
STEPS

NEW BRICK PAVER
WALKWAY

REBUILD WALKWAY
WITH EXISTING
GLAZED BRICK



A-101
DEMO & NEW PLANS

1
A-101

DEMO FLOOR PLAN
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0 2' 4' 8'4'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

NORTH

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CONARD RENOVATIONS
501 METCALF STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.13.2023
501 METCALF STREET

2
A-101

NEW FLOOR PLAN
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

NORTH

DEMO EXISTING PORCH

9'-
0"

17'-6"

19'-2"

DEMO PORTION OF RAILING

DEMO STEPS

18
'-0

"

9'-
0"

17'-4"

8'-8"

SCREENED
PORCH

10'-0" CLG    T&G WOOD

10
'-0

"

19'-2"

8'-0" 3'-2"

1
A-201

WOOD DECK
T&G WOOD

2
A-201

3
A-201

4
A-201

11
'-0

"

22'-1"



A-201
DEMO & NEW ELEVATIONS

0 2' 4' 8'4'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

1
A-201

DEMO ELEVATION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

CONARD RENOVATIONS
501 METCALF STREET, NEW BERN, NC 28560

04.13.2023
501 METCALF STREET

2
A-201

DEMO ELEVATION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

3
A-201

NEW ELEVATION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

4
A-201

NEW ELEVATION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

DEMO EXISTING
SCREENED PORCH

DEMO EXISTING
SCREENED PORCH

DEMO PORTION OF
EXISTING RAILING

10
'-0

"
2'-

7"
10

1 2"

DEMO PORTION OF
EXISTING RAILING

12
2

HAND SEAMED
METAL ROOF

12
2

HAND SEAMED
METAL ROOF

BRICK MASONRY PIERS
WOOD TRELLIS

SCREENED PORCH

6X6 TRIMMED PAINTED
WOOD COLUMNS

BRICK MASONRY PIERS
WOOD TRELLIS

SCREENED PORCH

6X6 TRIMMED PAINTED
WOOD COLUMNS

EXTENDED WOOD
DECK AND RAILING



Elgin Butler Company |  365 FM 696 |  Elgin Texas 78621 |  p 512.285.3356 |  f 512.281.2487 |  www.elginbutler.com

The History of Glazed Brick and Structural Glazed Facing Tile

The History of Glazed Brick and Structural Glazed Facing Tile Structural Glazed Brick and Tile were first used in the  
tUS in the early 20th century. Many of these first glazed units were manufactured as “salt glazed” brick and tile. This 
process was taken from the pottery industry. This glazing process utilized the use of regular table salt, NaCl, and 
reduced oxygen during the burning of the units. The salt was shovelled through small openings at the burner locations 
onto the gas fuel. The salt then vaporized and chemically mixed with the silicates of the body to form the salt glaze 
finish. This type of glazing has been discontinued for environmental reasons. Many salt glazed brick and tile buildings 
can still be seen today. You can recognize them by their wide color range-from a buff to an orange-brown color. The 
finish is transparent, showing the body color, which adds to the color variation. It also has small bumps in the glaze 
finish. Even though a true salt glaze is no longer available, Elgin-Butler Brick does offer many ceramic glazes in an 
attempt to match these old type glazes. Due to today’s tighter color control, you may need to use more than one color 
to achieve a wall with wide color variation.

Today the quality control standards for the ceramic glazed finishes are much more stringent. ASTM C-126 outlines the 
minimum standards for imperviousness, glaze opacity, hardness and abrasion, fading and chemical resistance. Under 
ASTM C-126, units must also have ratings of 0 smoke density, 0 flame spread, and 0 fuel contribution and emit no toxic 
fumes. The recently approved ASTM C-1405 can be used for solid glazed brick.

Since brick has been used for thousands of years, the nomenclature for the structural tile industry was developed 
with brick in mind; however, it had to denote the type of shape and which sides of the units were glazed:

The “S” Series is a “Standard” brick, 1/4” high and 1 B.E. (Brick Equivalent)

The “D” Series is a “Double” brick, 5 1/16” high and 2 B.E.

Naturally the “T” Series is a “Triple” brick (3 B.E.), but keeps the 5 1/16” height and added the extra B.E. onto the 
length of the unit, making a 6T unit nominally 12” long instead of the normal 8” brick length. (Remember 3 units that 
are 5 1/3” high equals 16” for coursing.)

Sizes continued to get bigger as time went by:

The “W” Series is 8” high and

The “Y” Series is 12” high.

•

•

•

•

•







Mark & Patrica Conard
501 Metcalf St.
New Bern
(770) 714-6003

Size Qty
Tamukeyama Japanese Maple 15G 1
Mini Maroon Barberry 3G 3
Upright Podocarpus 15G 3
Red Knock-Out Rose 3G 5
Louisiana Green Pittosporum 3G 5
Royal Purple Liriope 1G 10
Coral Encore Azaleas 3G 5
Green Mountain Boxwood 3G 5
Prostrata Yew 3G 6
La Vida Mas Indian Hawthorne 3G 7
Low Scape Mound Aronia 3G 12
Little Lime Punch Hydrangea 3G 1
Kleim's Hardy Gardenia 3G 3

Plant Total 66
Tax
Total Due

Deposit 

Balance Due Upon Job Completion

Shrub Variety





Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – April 19, 2023 

 
Page 1 of 3 

Applicant:       Mark & Patricia Conard/GO Architectural Design, PLLC 
Owner’s Address: 501 Metcalf St., New Bern, NC  
Project Address:  501 Metcalf St., New Bern, NC  
 
Historic Property Name:  George H. Roberts House, ca. 1874-1875 
Status:            Contributing:    X                 Non-contributing:         Vacant:    
NR Inventory Description (1988):  Two stories; two bays wide; bracketed cornice; gable-front 
roof with highly original sawn bargeboards. 
Sandbeck Description (1988): TBD. 
 
501 Metcalf St. - to include replacing the rear screened porch, enlarging the rear deck, new 
walkway, and new landscaping, all in the Primary and Secondary AVCs. 
 
Staff submits the following Historic District Guidelines as appropriate to this application: 

Landscaping 
2.4.3  Use plant materials that are indigenous to the historic districts. It is not appropriate to 

use contemporary edging materials such as landscaping timbers or plastic borders. 
Design Principles 
3.1.1  Consider the scale, mass and proportion inherent to the surrounding historic 

development pattern, and design modifications that incorporate these characteristics. 
Use basic shapes and forms that are common to the historic districts.  

3.1.2  Windows, doors and openings shall be compatible in proportion, shape, location, size 
and quantity with those on surrounding historic structures. Avoid large expanses of 
blank walls. Establish bays, visually subdivide facades and delineate building 
elevations to create form and rhythm. 

Modifications 
3.2.1  Select materials that are consistent with the structure. Limit the palette to those 

materials that were available at the time a building was originally constructed. 
3.2.2  Modifications to a structure should not conceal, damage or remove significant design 

components or architectural features. 
Additions 
3.3.1  Locate additions in a Secondary or Tertiary AVC to minimize the impact on primary, 

character defining elevations. Limit the footprint of additions to maintain private open 
spaces.  

3.3.2  Use roof forms and pitches that are similar to those found on the primary structure. 
Delineate the addition from the plane of the primary structure by creating slight offsets 
and corners. 

3.3.3  Incorporate materials and details derived from the primary structure. Extend the 
architectural hierarchy of the primary structure to the addition. Architectural 
embellishments and detailing are often simplified on less visible Secondary and 
Tertiary AVC elevations. 

Foundations 
4.1.3  Use traditional materials when constructing foundations. Concrete block should receive 

a veneer of stucco, brick or other appropriate masonry material.  



Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – April 19, 2023 

 
Page 2 of 3 

4.1.4  Locate foundation features such as vents and access doors in areas that will not detract 
from the architectural character of the building. Coordinate with other architectural 
features when possible, such as aligning vents and access doors with windows above 
or centering them between piers. 

Walls, Trim, and Ornamentation 
4.2.4  Incorporate wood trims and articulate masonry appropriately for the application. 
Entrances 
4.4.4  Provide porches, entrance doors, railings, and other ornaments that proportionally 

relate to the building. Appropriate balustrades often convey a heavier visual 
appearance. Center balusters between the top and bottom rails and space them about 
three inches apart. 

4.4.5  Enclose and screen porches in Secondary and Tertiary AVCs in a manner that preserves 
historic features. Walls and screens should not obscure columns and balustrades. 

Decks and Patios 
4.6.2  Locate decks in Secondary and Tertiary AVCs, and screen the underside with 

shrubbery, fencing, lattice, or masonry.  
4.6.3  Structurally separate decks to allow removal without damaging the historic structure. 
Roofs 
4.5.4  Standing seam metal roofs shall have a pan width no greater than 24 inches. Pans shall 

be completely flat without corrugation. Provide double locked seams with flush ridge 
and hip flashings on contributing structures. 

Masonry 
5.1.2  Match the masonry bond, or pattern, of masonry materials found in adjoining work. In 

general, new material should be the same size, color, and texture of that existing.  
5.1.3  The size, color, texture and bond, or pattern, of masonry and mortar creates the intended 

finished appearance. It is not appropriate to paint masonry that has not been previously 
painted.  

5.1.5  Provide a veneer of brick, stucco, or other appropriate material over concrete masonry 
units. Architectural concrete masonry units such as rusticated, split face or similar types 
may be substituted for stone masonry construction. 

Wood 
5.2.1  Adhere to Preservation Guidelines for retention of historic fabric when altering wood 

materials.  
5.2.2  Construct wood assemblies similar to that found in adjoining work. In general, new 

material should be the same dimension and shape of that existing. 
Paint 
5.4.2  Select paint and sealant coatings that are harmonious with adjoining work. In general, 

new material shall be a compatible formulation with the substrate of application.  
5.4.3  Apply primer coatings to front and back of wood surfaces prior to cutting and fitting. 

Prime end cuts before installation. Apply finish paint coatings to exposed primed 
surfaces.  

5.4.4  Consider using opaque stain in lieu of paint on flooring, fencing, and similar wood 
surfaces exposed to foot traffic or weather 

 



Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – April 19, 2023 

 
Page 3 of 3 

Statements of Reason, based on the information contained in the application, in Staff’s judgment are: 
1. The structure is a contributing resource in the Tight Weave development pattern; 
2. The project is an addition and modifications to a contributing structure and the site 

within the Primary and Secondary AVCs; 
3. The proposed design, components, and materials meet the requirements of the 

Guidelines; 
4. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project 

and commented accordingly; 
5. The project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  

 

MOTION 
Staff recommends the Commission approve this application to include replacing the rear 
screened porch, enlarging the rear deck, new walkway, and new landscaping, all in the 
Primary and Secondary AVCs. 



CoA App 071515.doc 

FEE SCHEDULE (office use only) 
[ ] $22 Standard Application (minor) 
[ ] $107 Standard Application (major)  

Application for a Certificate of Appropriateness 
(For Alterations to Properties in Locally Designated Historic Districts) 

For assistance see “CoA Instructions”, as well as “Historic District Guidelines”, available online at: 

http://www.newbern-nc.org/departments/development/historic-preservation/historic-preservation-guidlines/ 

Type of Project: Exterior Alteration Addition  Infill Site Work   Other 

I. Applicant/Owner Information:

Property Address (Include year built, if known): 

Property Owner Name(s): Owner Mailing Address: Phone #’s: Email: 

Applicant Name (if different): Applicant Mailing Address: Phone #’s: Email: 

II. Project Information:  (See “CoA Instructions” & “ Historic Guidelines” for help in completing this section)

1. Provide a detailed description of work to be conducted on site:  (Attach additional sheets if needed)

 Continued on additional sheet or attached brochure  
2. Reference the specific Guideline(s) in the “Historic District Guidelines” which you believe apply to this
project:  (page and guideline number):

 Continued on additional sheet or attached brochure  

Continued on additional sheet 

3. Provide a detailed description of materials to be used (copies of brochures, texture, etc.):
Reference the specific Guidelines in the Historic District Guidelines for the proposed material(s). 

 Continued on additional sheet or attached brochure  

 HPC Administrator 

HPCadmin@newbern-nc.org 

Work:(252)639-7583 

Fax: (252)636-2146 

222 Middle Street (circa 1900)

Keith Jenkins keith@bkelectric.net 22705 Ashley Inn Terrace
Ashboro, VA  20148 571-283-7256

On the rear of the building create a door opening in a previously closed window opening for egress from the second 
floor.  Create 3 window openings along the alley way with internal fire-shutters.  See plans and elevations.

Doors and Windows 4.3.1-3, .5

Fiberglass door and wood windows with 3d grilles inside and out.

X

http://www.newbern-nc.org/departments/development/historic-preservation/historic-preservation-guidlines/
Sarah
Typewritten Text
GO Architectural Design, PLLCSarah Afflerbach, AIA

Sarah
Typewritten Text
1202A Pollock StreetNew Bern, NC  28560

Sarah
Typewritten Text
252-633-0322

Sarah
Typewritten Text
sarah@goarchdesign.com







2668

DW

2668

3080

2468
2468

26
68

2660

3068

308 0

266 8

30
68

 C
A

SE
D

30
80

40
68

 C
A

SE
D

WH MECH

266 0 266 0

26
68

2668 2668 2668

26
68

26682668

2668 2668 26682668

DW

60
68

 C
A

SE
D

26
68

30
68

G-101
TITLE SHEET

1
G-101

SECOND FLOOR
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4' 8' 16'8'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

JENKINS - 222 MIDDLE STREET RENOVATIONS

G-101 TITLE SHEET AND LIFE SAFETY
PHOTOS
AD-101 DEMOLITION PLANS
AD-102 DEMOLITION SECTIONS
A-101 NEW FLOOR PLANS
A-102 NEW SECTIONS

SHEET DESCRIPTION
G-101Life Safety Plan Sheet #, if Provided  _____________________________222 MIDDLE STREET (SECOND FLOOR), NEW BERN NC 28560

Name of Project:

Address:

Proposed Use:

Owner or Authorized Agent:

Owned By:

Code Enforcement Jurisdiction:

BUILDING
MAXIMUM

REFERENCE

The maximum area of parking garages must comply with 406.3.5.  The maximum area of air traffic control towers

Unlimited area applicable under conditions of Sections of Sections Group B, F, M, S, A-4 (507.1, 507.2, 507.3,

UNLIMITED
AREA OR
ALLOWABLE

21 INCREASE
SPRINKLER 
AREA FOR

43 AREA

SHOWN ON PLANS

STORIES

TYPE

CODE

c.  Ratio (F/P) = ______________(FP)

AREA 
TABLE 506.2

(ACTUAL)
PER STORY
BLDG AREAAND USE

DESCRIPTION

must comply with 412.1.2.

STORIES

FEET 

TYPE

BUILDING HEIGHT

 BUILDING HEIGHT
CONSTRUCTION

SPRINKLERS(TABLE 503) 
ALLOWABLE

f

s
s

   b.  Single story building I   =  300 percent
   a.  Multistory building I    =   200 percent
The sprinkler increase per Section 506.3 is as follows:

STORIES + 1 =

FEET = H + 20' =

INCREASE FOR 

ALLOWABLE HEIGHT

Maximum Building Area = total number of stories in the building x E but not greater than 3 x E.

507.5); Group A motion picture (507.8); Malls (402.6); and H-2 aircraft paint hangers (507.6).

a.  Perimeter which fronts a publ ic way or open space having 20 feet minimum width =______ (F)

(A)                   (B)                    (C)                  (D)                  (E)                    (F)

=           < 1.00

e.  Percent of frontage increase  I    = 100 [F/P - 0.25] x W/30   =  __________(%)
d.  W = Minimum width of publ ic way  =  _______________(W)

b.  Total Building Perimeter                    = ______________ (P)

Open space area increases from Section 506.2 are computed thus:

INCREASE 
OPEN SPACE
AREA FOR

LEVEL

SHOWN ON PLANS 

STAIRLEVEL

2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 

ACTUAL WIDTH

.2200 G

1 1

LEVELSTAIR

(c)(b)USE GROUP
OR SPACE
DESCRIPTION

(a)

(TABLE 1005.3.2)
PER OCCUPANT
EGRESS WIDTH

(TABLE 1004.1.2)
OCCUPANT
PER
AREA

sq. ft.
AREA

EXIT WIDTH - SEE SHEET G-102

STAIR

EXIT WIDTH (in) 

(a/b) x c
(SECTION 1005.3.1
REQUIRED WIDTH

252-633-0322

and area limitations for each of  the applicable occupancies to the ent ire building.  The most restrictive

571-283-7256

X

9813

County
PrivateCity / County

Phone #

State
State

City

SARAH AFFLERBACH

LEAD DESIGN PROFESSIONALS

GO Architectural Design

KEITH JENKINS
KEITH JENKINS

RESIDENTIAL

DESIGNER     FIRM                                  NAME                               LICENSE#         TELEPHONE

DryWetI IIIII

Exception:
508.7

Repair

Hr.
508.6508.5

EnclosedOpen

R-2 R-3R-1
21 3

I-3 I-4
H-3 H-4
F-1 F-2

A-4A-3A-2

Unlimited per

508.8

R-4
4 5

H-5

A-5

Types:

III-A

NFPA 13DNFPA 13R

YesNo
V

II-BII-A

Upfit

III-B

X

Alteration

ClassNo Yes

Sprinklers:

Standpipes:
Fire District:

Building Height:
Mezzanine:

High Rise:

Non-Separated Mixed Occupancy (302.3.2)

Mixed Occupancy: NoX Yes
508.4508.3508.2Special Occupancy:

Secondary Occupancy:
Parking GarageUtility and Miscellaneous

Storage S-1 S-2
XMercantile Residential

I-3 Use Condition
Industrial I-1 I-2
High-Hazard H-1 H-2
Business Education

A-IAssemblyPrimary Occupancy
ALLOWABLE AREA

Gross Building Area:

No Yes

No Yes

24' Feet 2

No Yes

2018

Construction Type:

NFPA 13YesNo

Mixed Construction:
IV

I-BI-A
YEAR EDITION OF CODE

XNew Construction
YEAR EDITION OF CODE

floor area of each use divided by the allowable floor area for each use shall not exceed 1.
For each story,  the area of the occupancy shall be such that the sum of the ratios of the actual 

The required type of construction for the building shall be determined by applying the height

FLOOR                        EXISTING (SQ FT)                              NEW (SQ FT)                           SUB-TOTAL

Allowable area of Occupancy A      Allowable area of Occupancy B 
Actual Area of Occupancy A      +     Actual Area of Occupancy B    < 1

Separated Mixed Occupancy (302.3.1) - See below for area calculat ions

type of  construct ion, so determined, shall apply to the entire building.

Separation:

High-piled

Factory-Industrial

Central Reference Sheet # (i f provided)

Number of  Stories

X

Renovation (Existing Bldg)

Architectural
Civil

Electrical
Fire Alarm
Plumbing

Mechanical
Sprinkler-Standpipe

Structural
Ret. Walls >5' High

Other

JOINTS
RATED
FOR
DESIGN #

X
X
X
X
X

X

PENETRATION 
RATED
FOR 
DESIGN # 

X
X
X
X
X

X

Interior
South
West
East
North

Exterior
Bearing walls 

girders, trusses
including columns,
Structural frame 

SHEET#
 AND
DETAIL #

 REDUCTION)
(W/_________*
PROVIDEDREQ'D

RATING

(FEET)
DISTANCE
SEPARATION
FIREBUILDING ELEMENT

ASSEMBLY
RATED
FOR
DESIGN #

EGRESS     (SECTION 1004.1) 
ARRANGEMENT MEANS OF

PLANS
SHOWN ON
DISTANCE
ACTUAL

X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X

X

1,3

EXIT DOORS
BETWEEN
DISTANCE
REQUIRED

X
X
X
X
X

X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X

X

X
X
X
X
X

Including supporting

X

X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X

2
SPACE DESIGNATION
FLOOR, ROOM OR TRAVEL DISTANCE 

PLANS

(TABLE 1006.2.1)
DISTANCE
ALLOWABLE TRAVEL

ON PLANS
SHOWNREQUIRED 

NUMBER OF EXITS
MINIMUM

Panic Hardware:
Smoke Detection Systems:

Fire Alarm:
Exit Signs
Emergency Lighting:

* Indicate section number permitting reduction

Shafts - Exit
Shafts - Other

Tenant Separation

Corridor Separation
Occupancy Separation
Party/Fire Wall Separat ion
Smoke Barrier Separation

Roof construction
including supporting
beams and joists

beams and joists

Floor construction

and partitions
Exterior

Exterior
North
East
West
South

Interior

X

X
X

X

SHOWN ON
DISTANCE
TRAVEL
ACTUAL

NUMBER AND ARRANGEMENT OF EXITS
EXIT REQUIREMENTS

NO                  YES
NO                  YES
NO                  YES
NO                  YES
NO                  YES

LIFE SAFETY SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

Nonbearing walls 

PROVIDED
ACCESSIBLE
TOTAL #

ACCESSIBLE

AREA 

TOTAL

SPECIAL APPROVALS

ACCESS AISLEACCESS AISLE
REGULAR WITH 5'PROVIDED REQUIRED

TOTAL # OF PARKING SPACES 
PARKING 
LOT OR 

ACCESSIBLE PARKING

FEMALEMALE TUBS
SHOWERS/LAVATORIESURINALS

FEMALEMALE
WATERCLOSETSOCCUPANCY

PLUMBING FIXTURE REQUIREMENTS

Special approval: (Local Jurisdiction, Department of Insurance, SBCCI, ICC,etc., describe below)

VAN SPACES WITH 8'
# OF ACCESSIBLE SPACES PROVIDED

REGULAR
DRINKING FOUNTAINS

RENOVATION

BUILDING CODE SUMMARY
FIRE PROTECTION REQUIREMENTS

+ +

* 403.2 OCCUPANCY LOAD FOR EACH SPACE < 100 PEOPLE NOT REQUIRING A SEPARATE FACILITY

X
X
X
X
X

X

X
X
X
X
X

X

X
X
X
X
X

X0

X
X
X
X
X

X

X
X
X
X

X
X
X
X

X
X
X
X

X
X
X
X
X

XXXX

X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X

X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X

.3

CALCULATED
OCCUPANT
LOAD

6APARTMENT A 1,190 SF

SECOND FLOOR 1 98'-4"125'1

FIRE EXTINGUISHER - CLASS A

1HR RATED

TRAVEL DISTANCE

FE

EMERGENCY LIGHTING

KEY

A

Email: KEITH@BKELECTRIC.NET

NEW BERN

X

X

X

X

APARTMENT A  1,190 SF
APARTMENT B   521 SF
CIRCULATION/MECH   337 SF

TOTAL 2,048 SF

XXX

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0

1/2
1
2
0
0

V V

60'

4

25'

2

FEET 

603

504.4

504.3

.2200 G .33APARTMENT B 521 SF

2ND FL

N/A

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

JENKINS - RENOVATIONS
222 MIDDLE STREET, NEW BERN, NC  28560

02.26.2023
JENKINS - 222 MIDDLE ST

X

APARTMENT A - R3  1,190 SF UL
APARTMENT B - R3   521 SF UL
CIRCULATION/MECH   337 SF UL
TOTAL 2,048 SF

NORTH

2
G-101

FIRST FLOOR
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

NORTH

NOT PART OF THIS PROJECT

APARTMENT A
1,190 SFAPARTMENT B

521 SF

MECHANICAL
ROOM

57'-11"39'-4"

21
'-0

"

98'-4"

NOTE:
2ND FLOOR -  REQUIRED SPRINKLER NFPA13

EXISTING MASONRY PARTY WALL - 2HR

EXISTING MASONRY PARTY WALL - 2HR

3
G-101

BUILDING SECTION
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

APARTMENT B
R3 OCC.

APARTMENT A
R3 OCC.9'-

0"

7'-
4"

7'-
6"

11
'-6

"

4'-
0"

4'-
0" 7'-

4"
7'-

6"

A2 ASSEMBLY

APARTMENT B
R3 OCC.

A2 ASSEMBLY

1
A-204

KEYS & SYMBOLS

DRAWING NUMBER

SHEET NUMBER

ROOM NAME

SQUARE FOOTAGE FLOOR FINISH

BEDROOM
100 SF    WOOD

1
A-101

FIRST FLOOR PLAN
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

DRAWING NUMBER

SHEET NUMBER

0'-0"
GRADE ELEVATION HEIGHT

DOOR & WINDOW SIZE KEY
         =  2'-6" WIDE (ASSUME STANDARD DOOR

 HEIGHT OF 6'-8" UNLESS NOTED)

2060  =  2'-0" WIDE  X  6'-0" HIGH

2668

1/2HR RATED

2HR RATED FIRE SHUTTER F.S.

F.S. F.S. F.S.



AD-101
DEMOLITION PLANS

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

JENKINS - RENOVATIONS
222 MIDDLE STREET, NEW BERN, NC  28560

02.26.2023
JENKINS - 222 MIDDLE ST

OPEN UP PREVIOUSLY CLOSED
WINDOW TO CREATE NEW EXIT DOOR

REMOVE PORTION OF BRICK MASONRY
TO ACCOMMODATE NEW WINDOW

PHOTO 01 PHOTO 02 PHOTO 03

PHOTO 04 PHOTO 05 PHOTO 06 PHOTO 07



AD-101
DEMOLITION PLANS

0 2' 4' 8'4'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

JENKINS - RENOVATIONS
222 MIDDLE STREET, NEW BERN, NC  28560

02.26.2023
JENKINS - 222 MIDDLE ST

2
AD-101

SECOND FLOOR
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

NORTH

1
AD-101

FIRST FLOOR
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

NORTH

20'-51 2" 2'-6"

9'-6" 2'-6" 9'-6" 2'-6"

NOT PART OF THIS CONTRACT

3'-
1"

OPEN UP PREVIOUSLY CLOSED
WINDOW TO CREATE NEW EXIT DOOR

REMOVE PORTION
OF BRICK MASONRY
TO ACCOMMODATE
NEW WINDOW

REMOVE PORTION OF
BRICK MASONRY TO
ACCOMMODATE NEW

WINDOW

220 MIDDLE STREET

222A MIDDLE STREET

223 MIDDLE STREET
30'-10"

4'-
0"

220 MIDDLE STREET

222A MIDDLE STREET

223 MIDDLE STREET
30'-10"

4'-
0"

EXISTING
HVAC

EQUIPMENT

EXISTING SKYLIGHT

1
AD-102

AD-102
1

2
AD-102

2
AD-102

MIDDLE STREET

MIDDLE STREET



A-102
DEMOLITION SECTIONS

0 2' 4' 8'4'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

JENKINS - RENOVATIONS
222 MIDDLE STREET, NEW BERN, NC  28560

02.26.2023
JENKINS - 222 MIDDLE ST

1
A-102

BUILDING SECTION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

NORTH

2
A-102

BUILDING SECTION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

NORTH

APARTMENT B
R3 OCC.

APARTMENT A
R3 OCC.

A2 ASSEMBLY

APARTMENT B
R3 OCC.

A2 ASSEMBLY

7'-
6"

7'-
4"

9'-
0"

11
'-6

"

7'-
4"

7'-
6"

1'-
6"

5'-
0"EGRESS

WINDOW 5.7SF
OPENING MIN

3'-
4"

5'-
0"EGRESS

WINDOW 5.7SF
OPENING MIN

3'-
4"

5'-
0"EGRESS

WINDOW 5.7SF
OPENING MIN

6'-
31 2"

EXISTING STAIRS

1HR RATED BETWEEN SPACES

1HR RATED BETWEEN SPACES

222A MIDDLE ST ADJACENT
BUILDING OUTLINE



2668

D
W

2668

3080

2468
2468

26
68

2660

3068

3080

2668

30
68

 C
AS

ED

30
80

40
68

 C
AS

ED

WH MECH

2660 2660

26
68

2668 2668 2668

26
68

26682668

2668 2668 26682668

DW

60
68

 C
AS

ED

26
68

30
68

A-101
FIRST FLOOR PLAN

0 2' 4' 8'4'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

JENKINS - RENOVATIONS
222 MIDDLE STREET, NEW BERN, NC  28560

02.26.2023
JENKINS - 222 MIDDLE ST

1
G-101

SECOND FLOOR
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

NORTH

1
G-101

FIRST FLOOR
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

NORTH

8'-11"11'-0"5'-51 2"

BEDROOM 01
7'-4" CLG    WOOD

APARTMENT A
1,190 SF

APARTMENT B
521 SF

MECHANICAL
ROOM

LIVING/KITCHEN
7'-4" CLG    WOOD

13'-0"

16
'-3

"
4'-

3"

4'-4" 34'-7"

6'-
0"

14
'-6

"

11
'-0

"
3'-

3"

4'-3"

5'-
0"

3'-0"6'-71 2"

8'-11"

4'-
7"

3'-0"

5'-
6"

4'-1" 6'-3"

8'-
6"

12
'-0

"

5'-5"

BEDROOM 01
9'-0" CLG    WOOD

KITCHEN
9'-0" CLG    WOOD

12'-8"
12'-2"

5'-5"
21'-0"

5'-
5"

5'-0"

20
'-1

0"

12'-9"

12
'-0

"
2'-

9"

NEW DOOR IN EXISTING
WINDOW OPENING

NEW 1HR WALL

220 MIDDLE STREET

222A MIDDLE STREET

223 MIDDLE STREET
30'-10"

4'-
0"

220 MIDDLE STREET

222A MIDDLE STREET

223 MIDDLE STREET
30'-10"

4'-
0"

NOT PART OF THIS CONTRACT

2HR RATED
FIRE SHUTTER

2HR RATED
FIRE SHUTTER

2HR RATED
FIRE SHUTTER

21'-81 2"

10'-9" 12'-0"

1
AD-102

2
AD-102

2
AD-102

MIDDLE STREET

MIDDLE STREET

1
AD-102

BEDROOM 02
9'-0" CLG    WOOD

3'-0"

4'-4"

4'-6"

3'-4" 6'-0"

4'-
2"

3'-2"

LIVING ROOM
9'-0" CLG    WOOD

11
'-3

"

DINING ROOM
9'-0" CLG    WOOD

5'-5"

8'-
0"

3'-
8"

9'-
5"

2'-
3"

3'-
0"

5'-
2"



A-102
BUILDING SECTION

0 2' 4' 8'4'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

1 2 0 2 - A  P o l l o c k  S t r e e t
N e w  B e r n ,  N C   2 8 5 6 0
2 5 2 - 6 3 3 - 0 3 2 2
w w w . g o a r c h d e s i g n . c o m

JENKINS - RENOVATIONS
222 MIDDLE STREET, NEW BERN, NC  28560

02.26.2023
JENKINS - 222 MIDDLE ST

1
A-102

BUILDING SECTION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

NORTH

2
A-102

BUILDING SECTION
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

NORTH

APARTMENT B
R3 OCC.

APARTMENT A
R3 OCC.

A2 ASSEMBLY

APARTMENT B
R3 OCC.

A2 ASSEMBLY

7'-
6"

7'-
4"

9'-
0"

11
'-6

"

7'-
4"

7'-
6"

1'-
6"

5'-
0"EGRESS

WINDOW 5.7SF
OPENING MIN

3'-
4"

5'-
0"EGRESS

WINDOW 5.7SF
OPENING MIN

3'-
4"

5'-
0"EGRESS

WINDOW 5.7SF
OPENING MIN

6'-
31 2"

EXISTING STAIRS

1HR RATED BETWEEN SPACES

1HR RATED BETWEEN SPACES

222A MIDDLE ST ADJACENT
BUILDING OUTLINE





200 DOUBLE HUNG

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

A

B

C

Style comes standard with all of our 200 double hung wood/
composite windows. They are equipped with a tilt-in sash 
system that makes cleaning simple. The low-maintenance 
cellular PVC exterior components and brick mould resist 
rot and can easily be painted. A selection of exterior casing 
options and simulated-divided-lite (SDL) provide a historically 
accurate look to help enhance the beauty of your home.

C
Compression balance 
system for simple  
tilt-in cleaning of 
exterior glass

Sash and interior 
made with select 
clear wood ready  
for paint or stain  
to match any  
interior décor

B
Cam action 
sash locks with 
matching  
jambliner

A

FEATURES

1 Low-maintenance cellular PVC exterior casing 
and brick mould ready to accept acrylic paint

2 Cam action sash locks with matching  
jambliner

3 4 9/16" jambs eliminate extensive drywall work

4 Both sash tilt in and remove for safe and easy 
cleaning of exterior glass

5 Energy-efficient Warm Edge insulating glass

6 Bulb weatherstripping on sash for air-tight 
performance and smooth operation

7 Sash and interior made with select clear wood 
ready for staining to match any interior décor – 
also available with primed interior for painting

8 Compression balance system for simple tilt-in 
cleaning of exterior glass

1

111. Available option.      2. HP glass option combines Low-E with argon gas fill for high performance.

1

 
 W

A
R R A N

T
Y

  GLASS

20
 YEAR

2









Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – April 19, 2023 

 
Page 1 of 2 

Applicant:       Keith Jenkins/Go Architectural Design, PLLC 
Owner’s Address: 22705 Ashley Inn Terrace, Ashboro, VA, 20148  
Project Address:  222 Middle St., New Bern, NC  
 
Historic Property Name:  Windley Building, ca. 1885 
Status:            Contributing:    X                 Non-contributing:         Vacant:    
NR Inventory Description (1988):  220-222 Middle St. Two stories; brick; four bays wide with 
segmentally-arched windows and hoods in upper story; outstanding patterned and corbeled cornice. 
Sandbeck Description (1988): nothing relevant to the rear or side walls. 
 
222 Middle St. - to include three new windows and one new door, all in the Secondary and Tertiary AVCs. 
 
Staff submits the following Historic District Guidelines as appropriate to this application: 

Design Principles 
3.1.2  Windows, doors and openings shall be compatible in proportion, shape, location, size 

and quantity with those on surrounding historic structures. Avoid large expanses of 
blank walls. Establish bays, visually subdivide facades and delineate building 
elevations to create form and rhythm. 

Modifications 
3.2.1  Select materials that are consistent with the structure. Limit the palette to those 

materials that were available at the time a building was originally constructed. 
Windows, Doors, and Openings 
4.3.1  Adhere to Guidelines for retention of historic fabric when altering window, door and 

opening components.  
4.3.2  Add window and door openings in Secondary or Tertiary AVCs in locations that do 

not diminish the original design. In general, openings shall have a vertical orientation 
or be square.  

4.3.3  Glazing should have true divided light muntins, or three-dimensional grilles affixed to 
both the interior and exterior of the glass. Provide shadow bars between insulated glass 
panes. 

Masonry 
5.1.1  Adhere to Guidelines for retention of historic fabric when altering masonry materials. 
Paint 
5.4.2  Select paint and sealant coatings that are harmonious with adjoining work. In general, 

new material shall be a compatible formulation with the substrate of application.  
5.4.3  Apply primer coatings to front and back of wood surfaces prior to cutting and fitting. 

Prime end cuts before installation. Apply finish paint coatings to exposed primed 
surfaces.  

5.4.4  Consider using opaque stain in lieu of paint on flooring, fencing, and similar wood 
surfaces exposed to foot traffic or weather 

 
Statements of Reason, based on the information contained in the application, in Staff’s judgment are: 

1. The structure is a contributing resource in the Dense Fabric development pattern; 



Certificate of Appropriateness Findings and Recommendations 
HPC Regular Meeting – April 19, 2023 

 
Page 2 of 2 

2. The project is for the addition of three new windows and one new door, all in the Secondary 
and Tertiary AVCs of a contributing structure. 

3. Except for the fiberglass rear door, the proposed design, components, and materials 
meet the requirements of the Guidelines; 

4. The Zoning Administrator and the Chief Building Official have reviewed this project 
and commented accordingly; 

5. Except for the fiberglass rear door, the project is not incongruous with the Guidelines.  
 

MOTION 
If the material for the rear door is changed to a material that was available at the time the 
building was originally constructed, staff recommends the Commission approve this 
application to include three new windows and one new door, all in the Secondary and 
Tertiary AVCs. 



 
 

Everything comes together here. 

C. 100 Middle St. (Doubletree Hotel) – to include reconstruction of the deck in the Tertiary 
AVC.  Continued from previous meeting.  The applicants have requested this to be 
continued again. 

D. 710 New St. – to include demolition of a contributing structure and construction of a new 
infill house. 

E. 719 E. Front St. – to include construction of a new 2-story infill house and detached 
garages. 

F. 411 Broad St. – to include a new pavilion in the Tertiary AVC. 
G. 501 Metcalf St – to include replacing the rear screened porch, enlarging the rear deck, new 

front walkways, a new driveway, and new landscaping, all in the Primary and Secondary 
AVCs. 

H. 222 Middle St – to include three new windows and one new door, all in the Secondary and 
Tertiary AVCs. 

*Please note that applications for these projects, including proposed plans, are available for 
review during normal business hours in the Development Services Department (303 First St.). 

5. Old Business (non-hearing items tabled or continued from a previous meeting): none 
6. General Public Comments 
7. New Business: None 
8. HPC Administrator’s Report: 

A. Report on CoAs Issued 03/04/2023 – 04/06/2023 
MAJORS: 
None – 2 pending  
MINORS: 
214 Johnson St. – driveway, lift 
218 Metcalf St. – handrails, post 
227 E. Front St. – pilasters, lattice 
309 Johnson St. – rear stairs 
314 Fleet St. – doorway roof  
319 Bern St. – signage 
400 Johnson St. – handrail 
406 Metcalf St. – tree replacement 
602 Middle St. – fencing replacement, new fencing 
609 New St. – shed modifications 
624 Hancock St – fencing 
1206 N. Pasteur St. – exterior lighting, bathroom window reduced 
About 8 pending info from applicants 

B. Report on CoA Extensions Issued since the Prior Regular Meeting: none 
C. Other Items and Updates by the Administrator 

9. Commissioners’ Comments  
10. Adjourn 


	305 North Ave - redevelopment - HPC packet 2023-01-31.pdf
	305 North Ave MAJOR demolition and infill Staff Recommedations 2023-01-13.pdf
	Demolition


	710 New St HPC packet - demolition and redev 2023-04-15.pdf
	710 New St MAJOR demolition and infill Staff Recommedations 2023-04-14.pdf
	Demolition


	222 Middle St HPC packet new doors and windows 2023-04-15.pdf
	222 Middle Street CoA App pg 1, 2023-03-31.pdf
	03.26.2023 Jenkins DWGS.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Jenkins-A-101-G-101
	Jenkins-A-101-Photos
	Jenkins-A-101-AD-101
	Jenkins-A-101-AD-102
	Jenkins-A-101-A-101
	Jenkins-A-101-A-102




	2023-02-15 HPC Regular Meeting minutes DRAFT.pdf
	Applicant’s Comments
	Applicant’s Comments
	Reseating Recused Commissioner


	2022-01-19a HPC Regular Meeting minutes DRAFT.pdf
	Applicant’s Comments
	Reseating Recused Commissioner

	Public and Open Spaces
	Utilities
	Landscaping
	Fences and Garden Walls
	Parking
	Signage
	Design Principles
	Modifications
	Additions
	Foundations
	Walls, Trim and Ornamentation
	Windows, Doors and Openings
	Entrances
	Roofs
	Decks and Patios
	Accessibility and Life Safety
	Masonry
	Wood
	Metals
	Paint
	Applicant’s Comments

	Public and Open Spaces
	Utilities
	Landscaping
	Fences and Garden Walls
	Parking
	Signage
	Design Principles
	Modifications
	Additions
	Foundations
	Walls, Trim and Ornamentation
	Windows, Doors and Openings
	Entrances
	Roofs
	Decks and Patios
	Accessibility and Life Safety
	Masonry
	Wood
	Metals
	Paint
	Staff Overview of the Application

	Utilities
	Design Principles
	Modifications
	Additions
	Foundations
	Walls, Trim and Ornamentation
	Windows, Doors and Openings
	Entrances
	Roofs
	Masonry
	Paint
	Contemporary Materials
	Utilities
	Design Principles
	Modifications
	Additions
	Foundations
	Walls, Trim and Ornamentation
	Windows, Doors and Openings
	Entrances
	Roofs
	Masonry
	Paint
	Contemporary Materials
	Reseating Recused Commissioner
	Staff Overview of the Application

	Windows, Doors and Openings
	Applicant’s Comments

	Windows, Doors and Openings
	Reseating Recused Commissioner

	Walls, Trim and Ornamentation
	Windows, Doors and Openings
	Entrances
	Contemporary Materials
	Applicant’s Comments

	Walls, Trim and Ornamentation
	Windows, Doors and Openings
	Entrances
	Contemporary Materials
	Applicant’s Comments



